
 

Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, MARCH 21, 2022 

7:00 PM AT COMMUNITY CENTER, 528 MAIN STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of March 7, 2022. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

2. Proclamation recognizing March 22, 2022 as March for Meals Day. 

3. Proclamation recognizing March 30, 2022 as Honey Bee Day. 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 
business.) 

Old Business 

4. Pass Ordinance #3006, amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
increasing parking ratios for residential mixed-use and multi-unit buildings in the Downtown 
Character District to .75 parking spaces per bedroom, but not less than one parking space per unit, 
as recommended by the Planning & Zoning Commission, upon its second consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

5. Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Crystal Ford, Civil Service Commission, term expiring 04/04/2026. 

6. Receive and file the City Council Committee of the Whole minutes of February 28, 2022 relative to 
Review of the FY2023 Budget. 

7. Receive and file the City Council Committee of the Whole minutes of March 7, 2022 relative to the 
Infiltration & Inflow Reduction Program. 

8. Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of March 7, 2022 relative to the Continuation 
of the Public Safety Model Discussion. 

9. Receive and file a communication from the City Administrator relative to the appointment of an 
Acting Public Safety Director. 

10. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Barn Happy, 11310 University Avenue, Class B native wine - renewal. 
b) Social House, 2208 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

1



 

Page 2 of 3 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

11. Resolution approving the recommendation of the Acting Public Safety Director and City Administrator 
relative to the appointment of an Acting Police Chief. 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Master Service Agreement with IP Pathways, 
LLC, relative to providing data backup and disaster recovery services. 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a HOME Investment Partnership Program 
Consortium Cooperation Agreement with the City of Waterloo for FY2023-2025. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of three Service/Product Agreements relative to 
removal of hazardous trees on private property, and authorizing the City Operations & Maintenance 
Division Manager to approve individual property quotes. 

15. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Peterson Contractors 
Inc. for the West 12th Street Reconstruction Project, and approving and authorizing the transfer of 
funds from the Street Construction Fund to the Street Improvement Fund.  

16. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the 2022 
Street Construction Project. 

17. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Municipal Pipe 
Tool Company, in the amount of $286,395.50, for the 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 
Project. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Revised Owner Purchase Agreement, and 
approving and accepting a Warranty Deed, in conjunction with the Olive Street Box Culvert Project.  

19. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting April 4, 2022 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the College Hill Parking Lot 
Improvements Project. 

20. Resolution setting April 4, 2022 as the date of public hearing on a proposed amendment to Chapter 
26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to principal permitted uses in the M-1 Light Industrial 
District. 

Ordinances: 

21. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 7, Building and Building Regulations, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to discharge of stormwater or groundwater into the city sanitary sewer system, 
upon its first consideration. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

22. Allow Bills and Claims for March 21, 2022. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

Executive Session 

23. Executive Session to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the 
purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could be reasonably 
expected to increase the price the governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce 
the price the governmental body would receive for that property. 

2



 

Page 3 of 3 

Adjournment 

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, MARCH 7, 2022 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 8:27 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None.  
 

53703 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Ganfield that the minutes of the 
Regular Meeting of February 21, 2022 be approved as presented and ordered of 
record. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
53704 -   The Mayor then asked if there were any agenda revisions. City Clerk Danielsen 

noted that item #21 on the Resolution Calendar was being removed from the 
agenda.  

 
53705 - Mayor Green read a Proclamation recognizing March 8, 2022 as International 

Women's Day. 
 
53706 -     Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road, commented on preserving two historic 

homes on UNI property and her desire for the City to work with UNI in that effort.  

 Nick Taiber, 4925 Kylie Court, commended Director Olson on his years of service 
and for the success of the Public Safety Program.  

 Melissa Heston, 1911 Hawthorne Avenue, expressed concerns with postponing 
the housing assessment program. 

 Carol Yates, 519 Chateau Court, expressed concerns with postponing the 
resilience plan and housing assessment program. 

53707 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 
23, 2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed FY23 
Budget for the City of Cedar Falls. It was then moved by Harding and seconded 
by Dunn that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed 
on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53708 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed budget. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Finance & Business Operations 
Director Rodenbeck provided a brief summary of the proposed budget. There 
being no one else present wishing to speak about the proposed budget, the 
Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53709 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #22,702, 

approving and adopting the FY23 Budget for the City of Cedar Falls, be adopted. 
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Sires and Dunn, and 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

responses by Mayor Green, Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck 
and Community Development Director Sheetz, it was moved by Dunn and 
seconded by Harding to amend the motion to restore budgeted items for the 
Resilience Plan and Housing Assessment project. Following questions and 
comments by Councilmembers Harding, Kruse, Dunn, deBuhr and Ganfield, and 
responses by Sheetz and Rodenbeck, the motion failed 2-5, with Kruse, 
Ganfield, Sires, Schultz and deBuhr voting Nay. It was then moved by Kruse and 
seconded by Sires to amend the original motion to reserve leftover funds from 
last year’s budget for the College Hill Zoning and Rental Conversion program to 
earmark for rising costs.  Following comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, 
Harding, Dunn, Schultz and Ganfield, and responses by Rodenbeck, Public 
Works Director Schrage, Fleet Maintenance Supervisor Rawdon and Sheetz, it 
was moved by Ganfield to call the question. Motion to call the question carried 
unanimously. The motion to amend failed 1-6, with Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn, Schultz and deBuhr voting Nay. The Mayor then put the question on the 
original motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr. Nay: Sires. Motion 
Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,702 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53710 - Mayor Green announced the continuation of the public hearing on a proposal to 

enter into an Agreement for Private Development and to consider conveyance of 
certain city-owned real estate to McWing, L.L.C. Economic Development 
Coordinator Graham provided a brief summary of the proposal. There being no 
one else present wishing to speak about the proposed agreement and 
conveyance, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order 
of business. 

 
52711 -    It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,703, 

approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development, 
and approving and authorizing execution of a Deed Without Warranty conveying 
certain city-owned real estate to McWing, L.L.C., be adopted. Following 
questions by Mayor Green and responses by Economic Development 
Coordinator Graham, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of 
the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, 
Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #22,703 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53712 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 

25, 2022, on a proposal to enter into an Agreement for Private Development, and 
to consider conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to KL Iowa 01, L.L.C. It 
was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the proof of publication 
of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53713 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposal. Upon being advised that there were no written communications on file, 
the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic Development Coordinator 
Graham provided a brief summary of the proposal. There being no one else 
present wishing to speak about the proposed agreement and conveyance, the 
Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 
53714 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #22,704, 

approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development, 
and approving and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying certain 
city-owned real estate to KL Iowa 01, L.L.C., be adopted. Following comments by 
Mayor Green, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, 
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, 
Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,704 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53715 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 

25, 2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2022 CDBG Sanitary 
Sewer Rehabilitation Project. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by 
Ganfield that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed 
on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53716 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer 
Wicke provided a brief summary of the proposed plans, etc. There being no one 
else present wishing to speak about the proposed plans, etc., the Mayor declared 
the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53717 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Ganfield that Resolution #22,705, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project, be adopted. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr. Nay: None. Motion 
Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,705 duly passed and adopted.  

 
53718 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 

25, 2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed 
amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
deleting all shared parking requirements in the Downtown Character District. It 
was then moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that the proof of publication 
of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53719 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planning & 
Community Services Manager Howard provided a brief summary of the proposed 
amendments. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the 
proposed amendments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to 
the next order of business. 

 
53720 -     It was moved by Harding and seconded by deBuhr to pass an ordinance 

amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to deleting all 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

shared parking requirements in the Downtown Character District, upon its first 
consideration. Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Dunn, 
Kruse, Harding, Sires and deBuhr, and responses by Community Development 
Director Sheetz, Planning & Community Services Manager Howard and Mayor 
Green, it was moved by Dunn to call the question. Motion to call the question 
carried unanimously. The Mayor then put the question on the original motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, 
Sires, deBuhr. Nay: Harding, Ganfield, Dunn, Schultz. Motion failed. 

 
53721 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 

25, 2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed 
amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
increasing parking ratios in the Downtown Character District. It was then moved 
by Harding and seconded by Ganfield that the proof of publication of notice of 
hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53722 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planning & 
Community Services Manager Howard provided a brief summary of the proposed 
amendments. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the 
proposed amendments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to 
the next order of business. 

 
53723 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Sires to pass an ordinance amending 

Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to increasing parking 
ratios for residential mixed-use and multi-unit buildings in the Downtown 
Character District to one parking space per bedroom, upon its first consideration. 
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse and 
Harding, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, Sires, deBuhr. Nay: 
Harding, Ganfield, Dunn, Schultz. Motion failed. 

 
      It was then moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3006, 

amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to increasing 
parking ratios for residential mixed-use and multi-unit buildings in the Downtown 
Character District to .75 parking spaces per bedroom, but not less than one 
parking space per unit, as recommended by the Planning & Zoning Commission, 
be passed upon its first consideration. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Ganfield, Harding, deBuhr and Kruse, and responses by 
Community Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. 

     
53724 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that the following items on 

the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of February 21, 2022 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

relative to the Public Safety Director Position and Public Safety Model. 

Receive and file the 2021 Annual Reports of the Planning & Zoning Commission, 
Board of Adjustment, Historic Preservation Commission, Group Rental 
Committee/Board of Rental Housing Appeals, Housing Commission and Bicycle 
& Pedestrian Advisory Committee. 

Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of January 2022. 

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Pheasant Ridge Golf Course, 3205 West 12th Street, Class B beer & outdoor 
service - renewal. 
b) Scoopskis, 1828 Waterloo Road, Class B beer & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Chilitos Mexican Bar and Grill, 1704 West 1st Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
d) Deringer’s Public Parlor, 314 ½ Main Street, Class C liquor – renewal. 
e) The Stuffed Olive and Roxxy, 314-316 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - renewal. 
f) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 
g) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, Class E liquor – renewal. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

53725 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield to receive and file a 
communication from the Mayor relative to the appointment of Zachary Zippe as 
Student Liaison, term ending 04/30/2022. Following comments by Mayor Green 
and Councilmember Dunn, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
53726 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the following resolutions 

be introduced and adopted: 
 

 Resolution #22,706, approving and adopting certain revised Personnel Policies 
for the City of Cedar Falls. 

 Resolution #22,707, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
mow property located at 923 Ellen Street. 

 Resolution #22,708, approving and authorizing submission of a Peace Officer 
Retention Bonus Grant application to the State of Iowa. 

 Resolution #22,709, approving a C-2 Commercial Zoning District site plan for a 
storage facility to be located at 3717 Midway Drive. 

 Resolution #22,710, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with Terracon 
Consultants, Inc. for an extension of the 2019 Construction Testing Services 
through the 2023 construction season. 

 Resolution #22,711, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the low bid of Peterson Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $3,266,189.70, for the 
2022 Street Construction Project. 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

 Resolution #22,712, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. for the West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V Project. 

 Resolution #22,713, approving and authorizing execution of two Owner Purchase 
Agreements, and approving and accepting two Temporary Construction 
easements, in conjunction with the West 27th Street Reconstruction Project. 

 Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,706 through #22,713 duly  

53727 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of 
March 7, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. 

 
53728 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr to modify the previous 

Downtown Zoning referral by including discussion of the location of allowable 
shared parking. Motion carried 4-3, with Schultz, Harding and Dunn voting Nay. 

  
53729 - Zachary Zippe, introduced himself as the Director of Governmental Relations for 

Northern Iowa Student Government at UNI and a Political Science Major. 
 
  Councilmember Sires commented that the safe room at Robinson Dresser 

Complex should be unlocked and open to the public, and requested a map of 
safe rooms in the city and accessibility for those without shelters. 

 
  Councilmember Dunn responded to public comments about the historic buildings 

at UNI, and clarified that the Council cares, but that the buildings are on State 
property and out of the City’s jurisdiction. Councilmember Schultz also noted that 
the University cares, but that it’s a budgetary matter. Mayor Green and 
Councilmember Kruse also commented.  

 
53730 -     Mayor announced the Open House on March 10, 2022, 2 pm-4 pm to 

congratulate Public Safety Director Jeff Olson on his retirement and thanked him 
for his 36 years of service. 

 
53731 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the meeting be adjourned 

at 9:11 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
  

9

Item 1.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 

 

 

 

 

 

MARCH FOR MEALS DAY 
MARCH 22, 2022 

 

WHEREAS, fifty years ago, on March 22, 1972, the Older Americans Act of 

1965 was amended to establish a national nutrition program for seniors 60 

years and older; and 

WHEREAS, the March for Meals campaign was established in March 2002 to 

recognize the importance of the Older Americans Act’s nutrition programs 

through meals served in senior centers and meals delivered to homes of elders, 

and to raise awareness about the problems of senior hunger and isolation; and 

WHEREAS, the Northeast Iowa Area Agency on Aging (NEI3A) is a nonprofit 

serving under the Older Americans Act to provide services to older Americans 

that help them age-in-place with dignity and independence; and 

WHEREAS, the thousands of volunteers who deliver Meals on Wheels to 

homebound seniors here in Cedar Falls and beyond are the backbone of the 

program, and are worthy of recognition as they provide nutritious meals and 

compassionate contact to seniors and others who would otherwise risk daily 

hunger and isolation; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of Cedar Falls, do hereby 

proclaim March 22, 2022 as March For Meals Day in Cedar Falls and urge 

every citizen to celebrate our Meals on Wheels program, the seniors and 

caregivers they serve, and the volunteers who care for them to combat senior 

hunger and isolation and as well as to promote elder dignity and well-being.  

Signed this 15th day of March, 2022.  

 

______________________________________                                                                                  

Mayor Robert M. Green 
10

Item 2.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 

b  

 

 
 

HONEY BEE DAY 
 March 30, 2022 

 
WHEREAS, honey bees and native insects are important pollinators for a third of the food we eat, 

and are vital for the production of over 90 crops grown nationally, including here in Iowa; and 

WHEREAS, Iowa’s 45,000+ honey bee hives produce four million pounds of honey valued at over 

$8 Million and provide an estimated $92M in crop value annually through their pollination; and 

WHEREAS, more than 4,500 Iowa beekeepers, ranging from hobbyists to full-time professionals, 

are passionately managing bees ranging from 1 to 2 hives in a single apiary to thousands of hives 

in large commercial operations across the state; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Iowa maintains an active apiary program to protect honeybees and 

beekeepers by inspecting for apiary diseases and pests, and by encouraging best practices through 

outreach to individual beekeepers and beekeeping groups; and 

WHEREAS, honey bees face global threats from invasive pests and disease, colony collapse, 

reduction in bee-friendly habitats, climate change, and deadly herbicides and pesticides; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing nourishment and sustainable habitats 

to bees and other pollinators through native prairie plantings, and through reductions in the use 

of pesticides and herbicides on public property;  

NOW THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of Cedar Falls, do hereby proclaim March 30, 2022, 

as HONEY BEE DAY in the City of Cedar Falls, and I encourage citizens to take part in the Iowa 

Honey Producers Association’s celebration of honey bees through enjoyment of honey and other 

products of the hive; and I do further encourage all citizens, businesses, and other organizations to 

help in reduce threats to honey bee survival in Iowa through advocacy and direct action. 

Signed this 11th day of March, 2022. 

 

______________________________________                                                                                  

Mayor Robert M. Green 

   
11

Item 3.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: March 14, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Petition from City Council to Amend parking requirements in the Downtown 
Character District (TA22-001) 

 

 
At your work session on Tuesday, January 18th, the City Council directed staff to forward to the Planning 
and Zoning Commission a petition to consider amending certain parking requirements in the recently 
adopted Downtown Character District code.  
 
Background 
 
The Downtown Character District regulations were adopted by City Council on November 1, 2021. These 
new zoning regulations are intended to implement the Imagine Downtown! Vision Plan adopted in 
November of 2019. The vision plan was the result of public workshops, a week-long community design 
charrette, and other public outreach events that took place in 2019, where community members, 
including downtown merchants, property owners, residents, and other stakeholders were invited to share 
their feedback and ideas for the future of Downtown and surrounding neighborhoods.  
 
The second phase of the project was to draft zoning regulations to encourage future development that is 
consistent with the adopted Vision.  The draft code was presented to the public in February, 2021. The 
Commission considered the new code at four special work sessions and held 3 public hearings to 
consider public comments and suggestions for changes to the code.  The Commission discussed all 
proposed changes to the draft and made decisions on each one before forwarding a final draft to the City 
Council for consideration in May 2021.  The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommended draft was 
reviewed at three City Council Committee of the Whole meetings and two work sessions before a public 
hearing was scheduled. After discussion at three readings, the new code was adopted on November 1, 
2021.   
 
Council Petition # 1 – Eliminate shared parking requirements 
 
Under the new code, for a new development project that contains apartments or upper floor commercial 
uses, a certain number of shared parking spaces must be provided. These spaces must be made 
available for the public to use during at least 12 hours a day. For the remaining hours these spaces may 
be reserved for the tenants of the building. The property owner has the flexibility to determine the hours 
when they are available for shared use and can sign them accordingly. The shared parking requirement 
is one tool to provide some additional parking spaces for public use to alleviate parking congestion 
downtown during peak times when the spaces might otherwise be sitting vacant.   
 
 

12

Item 4.



 
 

However, a number of concerns have been expressed about the shared parking requirements, including 
concerns about requiring property owners to make their private property available for public use and 
about how the shared spaces will be managed and monitored over time. A majority of the City Council 
expressed concerns that the potential downsides outweigh the potential benefits of this requirement and 
requested that the Commission consider eliminating the shared parking requirements from the zoning 
code. They note that property owners would still have the option to voluntarily share their parking with the 
public.  
 
The petition was introduced to the Planning and Zoning Commission at their meeting on January 26, 
2022.  At a public hearing on February 9th, the Commission discussed the Council’s petition; and, on a 3-
4 vote, disapproved the City Council’s petition to delete the shared parking requirements.  
 
Council Petition # 2 – Increase the amount of parking required for residential uses in multi-unit 
and mixed use buildings 
 
Based on the recommendations of the parking study conducted by WGI in late 2018, along with 
stakeholder interviews during the Visioning process, the consultants drafting the Downtown Character 
District Code (Ferrell Madden), included a reduction in the parking requirements for residential within 
mixed-use and multi-unit buildings from 1 space per bedroom to 0.5 spaces per bedroom (along with 
0.25 spaces per bedroom for shared parking).  
 
A majority of the City Council expressed concerns about lowering the parking requirements for residential 
uses in multi-unit and mixed use buildings downtown and petitioned the Commission to consider re-
establishing the previous requirement of one parking space per bedroom.  
 
The petition was introduced to the Planning and Zoning Commission at their meeting on January 26, 
2022 and a public hearing was set.  At a public hearing on February 9th, a motion to approve the 
Council’s petition failed for a lack of a second to the motion, and therefore is considered disapproved by 
the Planning and Zoning Commission.  
 
As an alternative, the Planning and Zoning Commission on a separate motion recommended, on a 4-3 
vote, approval of an amendment to City Code Section 26-196, Character District Parking to increase the 
parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to 0.75 spaces per 
bedroom, but not less than 1 space per unit. There was general agreement that there should be no less 
than 1 space per unit to ensure that buildings containing all or a majority of units that are studios or one-
bedrooms provide at least one parking space per unit. A majority were supportive of an increase to 0.75 
spaces per bedroom.     
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ACTIONS: In summary, at their February 9th meeting, 
Planning and Zoning Commission held public hearings regarding the aforementioned Council petitions to 
amend the zoning ordinance. At the close of each hearing, the Commission took the following actions:  
 

Hearing #1: On Council’s petition to eliminate all shared parking requirements within City Code 
Section 26-196. Character District Parking, including all references to locational standards and 
time of day standards for shared parking, the Commission disapproved the petition on a 3-4 vote.   
 
Hearing #2: On Council’s petition to increase the parking requirement for residential uses in 
mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to 1 space per bedroom within City Code Section 26-196. 
Character District Parking, the Commission disapproved the petition. The petition failed for a lack 
of a second to the motion.  
 
As an alternative, the Planning and Zoning Commission on a separate motion recommended, on 
a 4-3 vote, approval of an amendment to City Code Section 26-196, Character District Parking to 

13

Item 4.



 
 

increase the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to 0.75 
spaces per bedroom, but not less than 1 space per unit.    

 

PREVIOUS CITY COUNCIL ACTIONS: 
 
At the March 7 City Council meeting, Council held public hearings on the recommendations from 
the Planning and Zoning Commission. Subsequent to the public hearings, the Council:  
 

1. Disapproved an ordinance deleting all requirements and standards related to shared 
parking within the Downtown Character District regulations. Since this item failed on its 
first reading, no further action is required of Council.  
 

2. Disapproved an ordinance to increase the parking requirement for residential uses in 
mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to one parking space per bedroom within the 
Downtown Character District. Since this item failed on its first reading, no further action is 
required of Council.  

 
3. Approved an ordinance to increase the parking requirement for residential uses in 

mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to 0.75 spaces per bedroom, but not less than 
one parking space per unit. The second reading of this ordinance is scheduled for 
the March 21 formal meeting.  

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION DISCUSSION AND HEARINGS 
Discussion 
1/26/2022 

The first item of business was a zoning text amendment to amend CD-DT to eliminate 
shared parking requirements. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard 
provided background information. She explained that City Council has petitioned the 
Commission to consider amending the parking requirements in the Downtown Character 
District by deleting the requirements for shared parking and to increase the minimum 
parking requirement for multi-unit residential development to one space per bedroom 
and ensuring that there is at least one parking space per unit.  
 
Ms. Howard provided a summary of the Downtown Visioning and Code update project 
for the new Planning and Zoning Commissioners who were not on the Commission 
during the public review process for the project.  She displayed a rendering of the 
boundary of the Downtown Character District and discussed the previous zoning within 
the boundaries. She detailed the public review process that had taken place at the 
Planning and Zoning Commission before the Commission made their recommendation 
to the City Council in May of last year. Ms. Howard briefly described the two types of 
parking in the Central Business District, public and private. She discussed each and 
explained that the current issue is whether there should be parking requirements on 
private property in the downtown area. She explained why cities are moving away from 
focusing on zoning requirements for parking and more toward public shared parking 
solutions. She described the distinction between short-term and long-term parking 
needs, reasons why cities rely on public parking, particularly for short-term customer 
parking, and the unintended consequences of high parking requirements. Ms. Howard 
discussed the parking study that was done in 2018 and how those results affected the 
zoning standards proposed in the new zoning code.  She noted that while other public 
parking options were being discussed to address downtown parking needs, such as 
construction of a public parking ramp, she explained that the focus of this meeting is on 
the zoning code, and discussed the previous private parking requirements as well as the 
new code requirements. She also discussed the definition of shared parking. Staff 
recommends discussion of Council’s request to eliminate shared parking requirements 

14

Item 4.



 
 

in the zoning Code and to increase the residential parking requirement back to one 
space per bedroom for new mixed-use and multi-unit buildings. It is recommended to set 
a public hearing date for February 9. 
 
Mr. Larson made a motion to schedule a public hearing for February 9 for both items on 
the agenda. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion.  
 
Mr. Holst asked about existing conditions for parking and how this will affect properties 
that are already established and previous requirements were met. Ms. Howard 
explained that it would only affect owners who are looking to make a change. 
 
Mr. Larson asked for clarification on what would trigger new development as to when the 
shared parking requirement would be applicable. Ms. Howard stated that the only 
shared parking requirement is for new multi-family units, or for new upper floor 
commercial space that is greater than 5,000 square feet.  
 
Mr. Larson asked how it will be decided what area of a parking lot is shared parking. Ms. 
Howard explained how the numbers are figured and how the spaces would be specified 
as available to the public. It was again clarified that these rules would not apply to 
existing properties.  
 
Mr. Leeper asked for an example of how parking would be if requirements were 
increased to one space per bedroom. Ms. Howard gave River Place as an example and 
presented the results from the parking study, which showed the percentage that was 
unused.  
 
Ms. Grybovych asked about examples of how this has worked for other cities that have 
proposed lower parking requirements. Ms. Howard discussed findings from other 
communities and how they compare to Cedar Falls.  
 
Ms. Crisman asked for clarification on whether private parking was just in lots or if it 
would include private garages. Ms. Howard stated that shared parking would only apply 
to new multi-unit or mixed use buildings.  Depending on how the parking is provided, it 
could be inside the building or be in surface lots. The owner would choose the best 
location for the shared parking spaces and would sign it for the hours it is available to 
the public.  
 
Mr. Holst stated that he feels that going back to the way things were would cause the 
situation to digress and not allow for growth. It was recommended that documents and 
information from the previous studies, presentations and meetings be forwarded to the 
newest Commission members to give them some background on the information 
shared.  
 
The motion to set a public hearing date for February 9th was approved unanimously with 
9 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), 
and 0 nays. 

 
 
Public Hearings 
2/9/2022  

The first item of business was a public hearing on a Zoning Text Amendment to 
eliminate shared parking requirements in the Downtown Character District. Chair Leeper 
introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background information on the petition 
from Council.  

15

Item 4.



 
 

 
Ms. Howard displayed the location of the Downtown Character District and noted that 
the details of the ordinance had been presented at the last meeting.   She noted that if 
there were any questions about the current regulations in the Downtown Character 
District, the slides from the last meeting were available for viewing.   
 
Eashaan Vajpeyi, 3831 Convair Lane, indicated that he was a spokesperson for a group 
of owners of property downtown. He feels there needs to be more specificity in the 
shared parking requirements to exempt certain businesses or to specify which 
businesses can afford to share their parking and which cannot. He gave the example of 
restaurants and how due to their hours they would not be able to shared their parking. 
He noted examples of potential issues and possible solutions.  
 
Mr. Holst asked for clarification on the current requirements for shared parking. Ms. 
Howard clarified that the shared parking requirements only apply to new buildings with 
residential uses and upper floor commercial. There is no shared parking requirement for 
existing businesses or for ground floor commercial, including restaurants. Mr. Holst 
stated that parking has been a big concern for him throughout this project. However, he 
feels that a lot of time has been spent on review of this new code and that we should try 
things the way they are now set up before changing it.  
 
Mr. Larson agreed and feels a great deal of work, research and math considered in 
coming up with the numbers. Those can be changed without scrapping the whole code 
that everyone has put so much work into. He feels that trying it the way it is and 
adjusting as needed is the best plan. He believes that a great deal of time and effort has 
gone into the current code and it would be arbitrary to change the position on the 
numbers that were considered so seriously before. 

 
 Mr. Leeper stated that he doesn’t feel that the shared parking requirement is not very 

significant. He likes the idea of making the effort to fix the problem, but feels the shared 
parking is only meant to be a very small part of the overall approach to parking, so 
would be open to deleting it. Mr. Holst stated that he feels the need to forge ahead and 
at least give it a try to see how it works. The idea behind it is beneficial to the overall 
health of downtown and a lot of time and work has been put into researching all the 
information that was used to create the code. 

 
 Ms. Saul stated that she feels that if a developer wants to build downtown and is a good 

steward they will voluntarily do the sharing. She doesn’t believe forcing the issue is 
necessary. She agreed with concerns about enforcement.  

 
 Mr. Hartley stated that he believes that some additional definition should be added, 

particularly with regard to underground and outdoor parking lots.  
 
 Ms. Saul made a motion to eliminate shared parking requirements. Ms. Grybovych 

seconded the motion. The motion was denied with 3 ayes (Grybovych, Leeper and 
Saul), and 4 nays (Crisman, Hartley, Holst and Larson). 

 
 Mr. Leeper asked if this can be brought back for consideration down the road to see 

how it is working. Ms. Howard stated that it can. 
 

The next item for public hearing was a zoning text amendment to CD-DT to increase 
parking requirements for residential uses in multi-unit and mixed use buildings. Chair 
Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard stated that the request from City Council is 

16

Item 4.



 
 

to consider increasing the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use or multi-
unit buildings to one space per bedroom. 
 
When asked, Ms. Howard noted that the Commission may discuss and vote to forward 
any alternative proposals for changes to the parking requirements by a separate motion.  
 
Eashaan Vajpeyi asked for clarification on the requirements on the parking ratios. He 
discussed a map that was brought up that shows Halloween weekend in 2018 showing 
one surface residential parking lot that is only 52% full. He asked if anyone checked how 
occupied the building was. He feels that the accuracy of the numbers would need to 
include the building occupancy at the time to show the real parking ratio. He feels that 
there should be at least a minimum one spot per bedroom as he believes that more 
people have cars than are being counted. He feels that the ratio of spots and occupancy 
is very important. 
 
Daryl Kruse, 2725 Minnetonka Drive, spoke regarding the parking study noting that, of 
the residents that live downtown, 35% do not have an assigned parking spot. Most park 
on the street or in a parking lot, consuming spots for customers. He also stated that the 
seating capacity for all the bars and restaurants downtown is very close to 4,000. If they 
are half full and everyone comes two per car, there are 1,000 cars that need to park. 
The parking study shows approximately 680 parking spots on the street. If new buildings 
are built without one spot per bedroom, parking will be very limited. He also had an 
issue with the difference in parking requirements for rentals from downtown and the rest 
of the town. He feels that one spot per bedroom should be the minimum. 
  
Mr. Holst asked for clarification regarding the parking for studio apartments. Ms. Howard 
stated that a studio apartment would be considered one bedroom and would currently 
require 0.5 spots per resident and 0.25 for shared parking.  
 
Ms. Saul made a motion to change the code to one parking space per residential unit. 
Mr. Larson seconded the motion.  
 
Mr. Hartley said that changing the code to require at least one space per unit is a good 
idea, but the reality is that no one knows what the “magic” number regarding how many 
spaces per bedroom is until this is put into practice.  
 
Mr. Leeper feels that requiring additional parking is a hindrance to development 
downtown and the environment that is attracting people downtown. People don’t come 
downtown for the parking. He asked for clarification on the parking study that was done 
and Ms. Howard stated that parking was counted different days and different times of 
day to get a feel for the overall parking situation. Mr. Leeper stated that this seems to be 
a good case study. Ms. Saul interjected that shared parking is also being required. Mr. 
Holst stated that that small of a change isn’t going to have that big of an impact either 
way.  
 
Mr. Larson withdrew his second to the motion that was made to increase parking to one 
space per residential unit. The motion was removed from the table.  
 
There was further discussion regarding an alternate motion. Mr. Holst stated that he 
feels that if the requirement is increased to one space, it should include the shared 
parking requirement. He noted that he is not in favor of increasing to 1 space per 
bedroom and then have the additional 0.25 space in shared parking requirement, which 
would make it higher than it was before the new code was adopted.  Mr. Larson noted 

17

Item 4.



 
 

that a lot of time was spent on the numbers and feels that it was well researched. This is 
just referring to new development and isn’t going to affect a great amount of parking.  
 
Saul made a motion to increase the parking requirement for residential in multi-unit and 
mixed-use buildings to 0.75 per bedroom, but no less than one space per dwelling unit. 
Mr. Holst seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Larson stated that this is substantially over-parked compared to the current 
condition and reiterated that he feels that a great deal of objective thought, meetings 
and research went into the current requirement. Ms. Crisman agreed.  
 
Ms. Saul feels that the increase is a good compromise as consultants are making these 
kinds of recommendations all over the country, but Cedar Falls may not be like all those 
other locations.  
 
The motion was approved with 4 ayes (Hartley, Holst, Leeper and Saul), and 3 
nays (Crisman, Grybovych and Larson) 

 
 

18

Item 4.



Prepared by: Karen Howard, P&CS Manager, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3006 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO INCREASE THE PARKING REQUIREMENTS FOR 
RESIDENTIAL USES IN MIXED-USE AND MULTI-UNIT BUILDINGS WITHIN 
THE DOWNTOWN CHARACTER DISTRICT (CD-DT) TO 0.75 SPACES PER 
BEDROOM, BUT NOT LESS THAN ONE PARKING SPACE PER DWELLING 
UNIT, BY AMENDING CERTAIN SUBSECTIONS AND PARAGRAPHS WITHIN 
SECTION 26-196, CHARACTER DISTRICT PARKING AND LOADING, WITHIN 
DIVISION 2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT 
REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 
WHEREAS, the Downtown Character District zoning regulations, adopted November 1, 

2021, establish parking requirements for residential uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has petitioned the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to consider increasing the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use and 
multi-unit buildings to one space per bedroom; and 
 

WHEREAS, at the public hearing at the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on 
February 9, 2022, the motion to approve the Council’s petition failed due to lack of a second to 
the motion and therefore is considered disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, as an alternative to City Council’s petition, the Planning and Zoning Commission 

recommended approval of an amendment to increase the parking requirement for residential 
uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings in the Downtown Character District to 0.75 spaces per 
bedroom, but not less than 1 space per dwelling unit.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

Section 1: Subparagraph b. of Paragraph 3, Minimum Reserved Parking, of Subsection C, General 

Urban, General Urban 2, and Storefront Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 26-

196, Character District Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, 

Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:  

 

b. Residential uses in mixed-use or multi-unit buildings: 0.75 spaces per bedroom, but not less 

than 1 space per dwelling unit. Note: studio/efficiency units shall count as one bedroom for 

the purpose of calculating required parking.  

 

Section 2: Subparagraph a. of paragraph 1, Minimum Reserved Parking, of Subsection D, 

Neighborhood Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 26-196, Character District 

Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District 

Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is 

hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof: 

 

19

Item 4.



a. Residential uses in multi-unit buildings: 0.75 spaces per bedroom, but not less than 1 space 

per dwelling unit. Note: studio/efficiency units shall count as one bedroom for the purpose of 

calculating required parking. 

 
 
INTRODUCED:    March 7, 2022   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   March 7, 2022  

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:     

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:     

ADOPTED:       

 
 

____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

20

Item 4.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green  

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: February 15, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Appointment of Ms. Crystal Ford as Civil Service Commissioner 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-306: Civil Service Commission 

 

1. In accordance with reference (a), I hereby nominate Ms. Crystal Ford for re-appointment to 

the Civil Service Commission for a four-year term ending 4/4/2026.  

2. Please contact me with any questions about this reappointment. 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Finance and Business Operations 

  Staff Liaison 

  

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

21

Item 5.



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

February 28, 2022 

 
The Committee of the Whole met at City Hall at 5:10 p.m. on February 28, 2022, with the 
following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Robert Green and Councilmembers Susan 
deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Dustin Ganfield, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz and Dave Sires.  
Staff members from all City Departments and members of the community attended in person 
and teleconferenced in.   

Mayor Green called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the agenda, Review of 
FY2023 Budget and introduced Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business 
Operations. 

Ms. Rodenbeck gave an overview of the budget schedule:  February 7 - Set public hearing date 
for Max Levy rate; February 8 - Publish Max Levy rate; February 21 - Hold the hearing for Max 
Levy dollars & set public hearing date for approval of the budget; March 7 - Hold public hearing 
on budget.  Rate being discussed for FY23 is $11.67, with current FY22 rate of $11.38.  Ms. 
Rodenbeck explained the Maximum Levy shows an increase of 6.33%, but when factoring 
rollback and tax rate the actual change in taxes paid are 4.65% for residential.  The budget 
summary is as follows:  property tax increase for residential of 4.65%; property tax increase for 
commercial/industrial of 2.55%; property tax decrease for multi-residential properties of 3.15%.  
Ms. Rodenbeck stated the following FY23 budget challenges include residential rollback 
decreasing, multi-residential phase out, backfill phasing out, project costs, high personnel costs 
& wage settlements, health insurance fund, technology costs, and insurance costs.  Ms. 
Rodenbeck introduced City Administrator Ron Gaines.  Mr. Gaines gave an overview of the 
proposed cuts to FY23 Budget proposed by Councilmembers:  Remove CIP #54 zoning, 
remove CIP #55 Rental Conversion, delay CIP #56 housing needs assessment to FY24, delay 
CIP #59 Resilience Plan Implementation to FY24, delay CIP #131 cemetery columbariums, cut 
CIP #138 EAB removal-50%, and remove part-time Human Resource position.  Mayor Green 
proposed having a motion brought forward to eliminate all proposed cuts to the FY23 budget.  
Motioned by Councilmember Schultz.  Seconded by Councilmember deBuhr.  Motion passed.  
Councilmember deBuhr asked about items #56 & #59, will those items be discussed again at 
Goal Setting in FY24; Mr. Gaines confirmed they will be Goal Setting topics; Ms. Rodenbeck 
stated they will also be included in the CIP.  Mayor Green wanted to confirm that item #54 will 
still have $150,000 available for FY23; Ms. Rodenbeck stated $150,000 will still be available for 
FY23.  Mr. Gaines clarified that the Downtown Zoning will not proceed until Council gives 
approval.  Councilmember Ganfield asked if any funding was left from FY22 for #138-EAB; 
Operations and Maintenance Division Manager Brian Heath stated no funding is left for FY22.  
Councilmember deBuhr asked how long it takes to build the cemetery columbariums #131, 
since they bring in income.  Director of Public Works Chase Schrage stated installation doesn’t 
take long since they are pre-made and these could potentially take time to generate revenue.  
Councilmember Schultz asked if any applications have been received for item #55, does this 
account normally contain $100,000 budgeted, what year was this process started and what’s 
the average of applications each year; Ms. Rodenbeck confirmed the account normally has 
$100,000, process was started in FY16 and stated 1 grant was complete in FY22, 1 application 
pending and the City is allowing room for a potential application.  Mr. Gaines stated applications 
received within the first two years were between 1-2 applications, but within the last couple of 
years all funds have been depleted for the rental conversion program.  Councilmember Dunn 
expressed the importance in funding investments in infrastructure.  Councilmember Harding 
expressed concerns with the removal of the part time Human Resource position; Ms. 
Rodenbeck informed Councilmembers of challenges within Human Resources (Increased 

22

Item 6.



tracking with COVID, COVID policies, employee questions and regulations).  Ms. Rodenbeck 
gave an overview of the new Human Rights position.  Mr. Gaines outlined some challenges that 
staff face, one of them being workload, including the budget, Public Safety Officer Program, 
downtown code amendments.  Mr. Gaines commented a lot is asked of our staff and we have to 
be careful to not burnout staff; the competition is very challenging with the private sector.  
Councilmember Dunn commented on the importance of having great staff, not burning them out, 
turnover cost money and longevity in staff is important.  Councilmember Dunn motioned to 
amend to strike the part time Human Resource position.  Seconded by Councilmember Harding.  
Councilmember Ganfield motioned to amend the motion and hire a part time Human Resource 
position in January to reduce salary by $30,000.  Seconded by Councilmember Schultz.  Motion 
passed.  Councilmember Schultz asked if $25,000 for #138 was a reasonable amount to 
complete EAB removal; Mr. Heath stated it is.  Councilmember Ganfield asked about #131, cost 
for one columbarium instead of doing two per year; Mr. Heath stated each one is approximately 
$40,000 includes columbarium, landscaping, concrete, amenities).  Councilmember Ganfield 
stated it’s more cost effective to install two instead of splitting them into one per year.  
Councilmember Dunn asked about removal of $100,000 for downtown parking; Mr. Gaines 
stated since it’s TIF related it has no impact on the budget.  Ms. Rodenbeck explained TIF is a 
long term planning tool and we have five active TIFs.  Mayor Green asked about delaying of the 
pickleball court repair; Mr. Schrage stated if delayed it may deteriorate and need a permanent 
reconstruction.  Councilmember Ganfield asked about the siren replacement #174, $60,000; Mr. 
Heath stated this is replacing a failing system at a school and generally there’s $15,000/year for 
general maintenance in the budget.  Ms. Rodenbeck reminded Councilmembers the discussed 
budget changes will be incorporated into the budget and included in the March 7, 2022 Council 
meeting packet.    Ms. Rodenbeck and Mr. Gaines explained the importance of staff training, 
CIP, infrastructure, quality of life projects, Public Safety, and sanitary sewer.  Councilmember 
Sires asked about the City Hall remodel funds; Mr. Gaines stated these funds were obtained 
from capital funds.  Mayor Green opened discussion to the public, no comments.      

Mayor Green stated that Council has a motion and second on the floor to remove/delay the 
following items from the FY2023 budget:  CIP #54 zoning, remove CIP #55 Rental Conversion, 
delay CIP #56 housing needs assessment to FY24, delay CIP #59 Resilience Plan 
Implementation to FY24, delay CIP #131 cemetery columbariums, cut CIP #138 EAB removal-
50%.  There was a consensus among Councilmembers to postpone hiring a part time Human 
Resource position in January instead of the proposed removal of the position.  Motion passed.     

There being no further discussion, Mayor Green adjourned the meeting at 6:12 p.m.  

Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 

 

23

Item 6.



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

March 7, 2022 

 
The Committee of the Whole met at City Hall at 7:03 p.m. on March 7, 2022, with the following 
Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Robert Green and Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, 
Kelly Dunn, Dustin Ganfield, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz and Dave Sires.  Staff 
members from all City Departments and members of the community attended in person.   

Mayor Green called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the agenda, Infiltration 
& Inflow Reduction Program and introduced David Wicke, City Engineer and Mike Nyman, 
Water Reclamation Manager. 

Mr. Wicke introduced the North Cedar Heights Area road reconstruction and Park Drive 
infiltration and inflow project and explained why reconstruction is needed:  narrow existing 
roadways, no curb, minimal storm water control, sanitary lines are dated, and Park Drive lift 
station is inundated from wet weather and to re-define roadway/Right of way (ROW).  The 
project will start in 2022 and end in 2026.  Mr. Wicke introduced Mr. Nyman; Mr. Nyman 
explained that I&I stands for infiltration and inflow of clean water into the sanitary sewer system.  
Clean water is either ground or rain water that flows into the sanitary system that’s not in the 
storm water system (two separate systems); the water gets into the sanitary system by cracks, 
manholes, water mains, or by direct inflow of a pipe with a direct connection to the sanitary 
sewer.  Pump stations are unable to move an overabundance of water and can cause overflow 
in pipes, manholes and the pump stations, this causing backup into homes.  Normal flow at the 
Park Drive station is 25,000-30,000 gallons/day but in extreme wet weather could be up to 
900,000 per day.  Back-ups and overflows are prohibited by IDNR (Iowa Department of Natural 
Resource).  For over 25 years the City has been lining sanitary sewer lines, rehabbed manholes 
and a new lift station at Park Drive.  City staff is proposing to change the code of ordinances to 
remove wording in section 7-196, pertaining to Ordinance No. 1275 that was adopted February 
10, 1969.  A proposed policy for removing illegal connections is proposed; this policy is intended 
to set a process for eliminating illegal connections in conjunction with street reconstruction 
projects going forward.  The definition of an illegal connection is any foundation drain, footing 
drain, footing tile, sump pump, roof drain, etc. that discharges into the sanitary sewer.  This will 
only address issues in the Park Drive area.  The process will happen during street 
reconstruction; Engineering and Water Reclamation will coordinate inspections, new sub-drain 
or storm sewer for reconnection; then the owner has 60 days from end of road reconstruction 
project to hire a plumber to correct connection, and owner will schedule a city inspection to 
verify proper disconnection and reconnection.  Financial assistance to the owner may be 
reimbursed up to $4,000 of actual cost; illegal connections must be corrected within 60 days 
and must submit an application within 30 days of final city inspection.  If building owners do not 
correct illegal connections they will be charged $100/month and it will be assumed that an illegal 
connection exists in all buildings if owner refuses to allow an inspection.  The next steps in the 
process:  March 21, first consideration of ordinance change; April 4, second consideration of 
ordinance change; April 18, final consideration of ordinance; in-home inspections for North 
Cedar Heights area to begin in April/May.  Mayor opened for questions from Council.  
Councilmember Kruse has concerns with contractor’s bids that may be above City’s allowable 
funding; Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works stated bids from three plumbers were 
acquired for pricing and averaged.  Mr. Schrage reiterated the main focus will be the Park Drive 
lift station area for the next five years and after 1969 developments have proper connections, no 
cross connection.         

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the meeting be adjourned at 7:22 p.m.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 

24

Item 7.



CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Cedar Falls Council Chambers 

March 7, 2022 
 
The City Council held a work session at City Hall at 5:30 p.m. on March 7, 2022, with 
the following persons in attendance:  Mayor Rob Green, Gil Schultz, Susan deBuhr, 
Daryl Kruse, Simon Harding, Dustin Ganfield, Dave Sires, and Kelly Dunn.  Staff 
members attended from all City Departments and members of the community attended 
in person. 
 
Mayor Green introduced the only item on the agenda, Continuation of Public Safety 
Model Discussion.  Mayor Green gave a brief overview of the previous work session 
including the Public Safety Director position opening and the consensus; he states since 
the last meeting Council would like to revisit consensus on moving ahead with status 
quo without any immediate changes and revisit in six months with no additional 
discussion until then – consensus not reached.  Mayor Green requested consensus to 
have discussion – consensus reached.    
 
Councilmember Schultz requested to address the vacancy for Public Safety Director 
first.  Councilmember deBuhr asked if the PS22 plan was campaign literature and if 
Public Safety leadership had any input into it; Director Olson responded that they did 
not.  Mayor Green requested clarification on the historical duty of the Director; Director 
Olson stated he was Director and Police Chief at the same time but had an Assistant 
Chief, and when he moved to Director only, the assistant became Police Chief; Fire 
Chief also had an assistant.  Councilmember Harding requested numbers on pay and 
benefits for having two Chiefs and two Assistants vs. one Director and two Chiefs.  
Councilmember Dunn asked who was involved in the creation of the PS22 document 
and their credentials, were Public Safety administration involved; Mayor responded he 
created the document.  Councilmember deBuhr asked Director Olson if Fire or Police 
Chief took over Director duties also, would it create chain-of command issues without 
an Assistant level and if his opinion was current hierarchy is best for the model; Director 
Olson stated if one was in the dual-role, they would require an assistant, and yes to 
current hierarchy.  Councilmember deBuhr asked Finance and Business Operations 
(FBO) Director Jennifer Rodenbeck if there were available numbers for two Chiefs with 
two Assistants; she responded from a salary perspective, 1 Director and 2 Chiefs would 
be lesser, but benefits and retirement also to consider; Councilmember deBuhr 
questioned if current model is cheaper why does Council want to change it.  Mayor 
Green asked about current succession for Police Chief; Chief Berte responded he and 
Chief Bostwick work at the operational level of the department, below them are 
Captains, then Lieutenants, and many are well-groomed to be Chief; Councilmember 
Schultz asked about promotions; Chief Berte provided information on additional 
trainings/schools attended and qualifications.  Councilmember Schultz questioned 
starting salary for the Director position; City Administrator Ron Gaines stated he’d need 
to check the pay band to be sure, but the City likes to start below mid-range and 
experience will be considered.  Councilmember Kruse asked how upper management in 
our PS Model compares to other cities’; Director Olson stated our department is 

25

Item 8.



“leaner”.  City Administrator Gaines stated that Cedar Falls has a pyramid structure; all 
Department Directors act as “deputy city managers/ administrators”; other cities have an 
assistant City Administrator, but our department heads take on those responsibilities.  
Councilmember Harding requested a third party consultant to report on the current 
model, the PS22 report, and gather metrics and data; Councilmember Kruse stated the 
ISO (insurance) report for fire is upcoming in the next year; Councilmember Harding 
agreed those are good metrics but the goal is to regain public trust.  Mayor Green 
requested direction for staff on the Public Safety Director opening; Councilmember 
Harding stated he wanted to wait til a third party evaluation is complete; Councilmember 
deBuhr stated the employee survey is upcoming, and asked if the third party review is 
premature to the survey results.  Councilmember Kruse asked about grievances; Chief 
Bostwick stated there have been no grievances in the past two years, he sees people 
getting along and working together, and is not hearing discussion of the model out in 
public; Mayor Green asked to clarify if there were no problems or if they were solved at 
a lower level; Chief Bostwick and Berte stated problems have been resolved quickly, 
and the Labor Management Committee is utilized as well as Union services.  Mayor 
Green asked if there is a policy stating officers cannot speak out against Public Safety; 
Chief Berte stated there is no policy against it, although there are things regarding 
department business that can’t be discussed on social media; he states the department 
encourages Council to visit and obtain administration permission to do ride-alongs.  
Councilmember Sires asked if the state requires both a Fire and Police Chief and if 
there are outside options for filling the interim Director position; Mayor Green stated 
current City Code only allows the existing Fire or Police Chief to be interim Director.  
Councilmember Dunn asked the purpose of continuing this discussion [of the model] 
and hiring a third party consultant, what problem is Council trying to address.  
Councilmember deBuhr stated the last consensus was to set a discussion for 6 months 
to follow-up on the Public Safety Special Report goals; Mayor Green asked if there’s 
anticipated change to the model or if it’s set; Chief Berte responded the model is set but 
there are always things to work on including the Special Report goals.  Councilmember 
Schultz asked to settle the discussion for Public Safety Director position opening, his 
understanding is Chief Berte has been named as acting Director and the City should 
publicize the opening; City Administrator Gaines clarified the interim timelines for 
Director and Police Chief.  Mayor Green asked for consensus to advertise for the Public 
Safety Director position opening; consensus reached. 
 
Councilmember Dunn addressed items 1-4 in the PS22 document and asked if they 
required Civil Service Commission and/or Union agreement; item number 2 was 
previously struck from consideration; City Attorney Kevin Rogers stated that for item #1, 
the Fire Fighter is still a job class but with no one filling it; he stated items #3 and #4 
would require collective bargaining/Union agreements and Civil Service Commission 
action. Councilmember Dunn asked about budget if these job positions were changed 
and additional staff had to be hired; Director Rodenbeck stated there isn’t room in the 
current levy to support that.  Councilmember Ganfield agreed with Councilmember 
Harding to request a third party audit and stated there is mistrust from the public; 
Councilmember Dunn asked who the neutral third party would be and if a small but 
vocal minority is reflective of the use of City resources, staff time, and funds.  

26

Item 8.



Councilmember deBuhr stated she has received many e-mails in support of the Public 
Safety officers and department, and asked about funding for the review.  
Councilmember Kruse asked why the review is necessary; he requested more clarity on 
Emergency Medical Service (EMS) response and evolution; Chief Bostwick stated the 
City had an ambulance 40 years ago before Sartori (now MercyOne) started providing 
the service.  MercyOne provides ambulance service in the City, and they are the 
primary paramedic service with Public Safety assisting; he stated there are two 
additional ambulances available for use at MercyOne in Waterloo; Director Olson 
stressed the teamwork between Cedar Falls EMS, MercyOne ambulance services, and 
the Care ambulance service and said MercyOne also provides paramedic services for 
outlying communities.  Mayor Green requested consensus on a third party audit review.  
Councilmember Kruse requested a timeframe; Councilmember Harding stated the first 
step would be finding an entity; Mayor Green asked if Council’s preference would be 
more or less time; Councilmember Kruse replied less time, and to consider budget; 
Councilmember Dunn stated first a consensus is required to do the review.  Mayor 
Green requested consensus on a third party audit review – consensus reached; Mayor 
asked if it needed to be a referral for the third party audit or if this consensus was 
enough; City Attorney Rogers stated no referral is necessary. 
 
There being no further discussion, Mayor Green adjourned the meeting at 6:57 p.m. 
 
 
Minutes by Katie Terhune, Administrative Assistant 

27

Item 8.



   OFFICE OF THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Green and City Council Members  
    
       FROM:  Ronald S. Gaines, City Administrator  
 
 DATE: March 1, 2022  
  
 SUBJECT:  Acting Public Safety Director 
 
  
Public Safety Director Jeff Olson will be retiring on March 10, 2022. In his absence, 
according to City Ordinance, an Acting Public Safety Director must be named. In 
accordance with Section 2-920 of the City of Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, I have 
appointed Craig Berte as the Acting Public Safety Director until such time as a 
permanent replacement can be named. He will assume the role of Acting Public Safety 
Director on March 10, 2022 at 5:00pm. 
 
 

28

Item 9.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Acting Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Acting Chief of Police 

Date:  March 14, 2021 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Barn Happy, 11310 University Avenue, Class B native wine - renewal. 

b) Social House, 2208 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

29

Item 10.



   OFFICE OF THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 TO: City Council Members  

       FROM:  Ronald S. Gaines, City Administrator 

       VIA: Mayor Robert M. Green  

 

 DATE: March 11, 2022  

  

 SUBJECT:  Acting Police Chief Designation and Appointment Recommendation  

 
  
Public Safety Director Jeff Olson retired on March 10, 2022. To address this vacancy, I have 

appointed Police Chief Craig Berte as the Acting Public Safety Director in accordance with 

Section 2-920 of the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, which states: 

 

“Whenever the director of public safety services is out of the city, or unable to act on 

account of sickness or for any other reason, including those periods of time when the 

city administrator has not appointed a director of public safety services, the director of 

public safety services or city administrator shall appoint one of the division heads as the 

acting director of public safety services. This designee shall have and exercise all the 

powers and duties of the director.” 

 

In the interest of public order and well-being, Mayor Green and I have determined that an Acting 

Police Chief should also be designated for the duration that Chief Berte is serving full-time as the 

Acting Public Safety Director. Section 2-949(a) provides that the Police Chief shall designate an 

Acting Chief for up to 30 days if the Police Chief is “temporarily unable to act for any reason”.  

In keeping with this authority, Acting Public Safety Director Berte has designated Captain Mark 

Howard as the Acting Police Chief.    

 

The current timeline provides for a Public Safety Director nominee to be brought to the City 

Council for approval in June 2022. As this will surpass the 30-day designation authority of 

Section 2-949(a), I recommend and request that the City Council formally appoint Acting Police 

Chief Howard for 180 days of service as Acting Chief as outlined in Section 2-949(b). 

 

Please contact me with any questions or concerns about this request.  

 

### 

 

30

Item 11.



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

Information Systems Division 
 

 TO: Mayor Rob Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager 

 DATE: March 14, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Backup and Disaster Recovery Updates 

 

The threat of cybersecurity attacks on government entities are growing at an increasing rate.  With the current 
political climate it is even more important that we are doing all we can to keep the City’s data protected.  One area we 
were encouraged to investigate from our cyber security insurance was to ensure our backup data was protected from 
ransomware and cyberattacks.   
 
Although this was originally budgeted for Fiscal Year 2023 we will risk losing our cyber security insurance if this is not 
implemented by July 1 2022. Therefore, we have taken the time to look at multiple options.  We’ve discussed options 
with other government entities and schools that use the different tools. Below you will see the different options 
investigated with quotes:      

 
 

Vendor 3 year cost  

Dell Cyber Recovery Vault $228,156 – hardware and 3 yr support 

Veeam Solution – City staff managed $99,323.05 – hardware and 3 yr software 

subscription, this would fluctuate with the amount of 

data we send to back up quoted at 4 TB 

Rubrik Solution – City staff managed $155,699.24 – hardware and 3 yr software 

subscription  

IP Pathways – Veeam Solution DR as a managed 

service  

$134,989.10 – service only this will fluctuate with the 

amount of data we backup quoted at 10 TB and 7TB. 

(we calculated 4TB as $93,401.68 to compare to the 

Veeam solution)  

  

Based on the solutions, we recommend the IP Pathways.  They are a known partner that provides our network 
engineering support.  Their solution is unique in that it does not include investment in hardware like the others.  We 
feel the cost for the services benefits us in other ways than a capital investment in hardware would.  Their service not 
only protects our backup data from cyberattacks it allows us the ability to bring up a disaster recovery site and run our 
systems from an offsite location at any given time.  The service also includes a once a year test to bring up the 
remote system as a proof of concept for our disaster recovery plan.  IP Pathways provide management of our 
backups as well with this service.   
 
I’ve included the Master Service Agreement/Contract; this has been reviewed by Kevin Rogers, city attorney.   
 
If you have any questions or concerns regarding this purchase, please feel free to contact me at 268-5111. 
 
 
 
Julie Sorensen 
Manager of Information Systems 
 

31

Item 12.



  

 

March 15, 2022 Proprietary & Confidential  Page | 1 

MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT  
 

 THIS MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) made Tuesday, March 15, 2022 (the “Effective Date”) by and 
between IP Pathways, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company with its principal place of business at 3600 109th Street, Urbandale, 
Iowa 50322 (hereinafter referred as “IP Pathways”) and City of Cedar Falls, with its principal place of business at 220 Clay St., 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (hereinafter referred to as “Customer”).  IP Pathways and Customer are also collectively referred to as 
Party or Parties.   
 
 In consideration of the mutual agreements and promises contained herein, the Parties agree as follows:  
 

A. STATEMENT OF SERVICES. IP Pathways provides services in the data center and managed services industry, providing 
high density cloud computing environments, interconnected advanced networks, and other such services as may be 
provided as identified in the IP Pathways Statement of Services Schedule (“SOSS”).   During the term of this Agreement 
IP Pathways will provide to Customer the services set out in the SOSS, pursuant to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, and in accordance with the IP Pathways’ then applicable policies and specifications (the “Services”).  Each 
SOSS will state the commencement date by which the Services will be first provided (the “Commencement Date”), the 
Initial Term length and the Renewal Term length.  Each SOSS will be considered a separate agreement which 
incorporates the terms and conditions of this Agreement and each SOSS, and any amendment to this Agreement or a 
SOSS must state that it is entered into pursuant to, and incorporates the terms and conditions of, this Agreement.  Any 
reference to “Agreement” herein, shall be a reference to each separate SOSS, and the incorporated terms and 
conditions of this Master Service Agreement. 
 

B. CONFLICT OF TERMS.  In the event the terms of any SOSS conflict with the terms of this Agreement, the terms of the 
SOSS shall control. Any capitalized terms not otherwise herein defined, shall have the meaning as provided in the SOSS. 
 

C. TERM. This Master Services Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date and continue in full force and effect 
for 1-year (“Initial Term”) unless earlier terminated.  This Master Service Agreement shall automatically renew at the 
end of the Initial Term for successive one (1) year terms (the “Renewal Terms”), unless either party provides written 
notice ninety (90) days prior to the end of the Initial Term or any Renewal Terms (collectively referred to as the “Term”).  
This Master Services Agreement shall automatically renew subject to the same terms and conditions.  
 

D. TERMINATION.  The Agreement may be terminated in any of the following ways: (i) Either party may terminate the 
Agreement in the event: (1) of the insolvency of the other party or the institution of any proceedings in bankruptcy or 
under any other insolvency law, or an arrangement with creditors, or a corporate reorganization, receivership or 
dissolution of the other party; or (2) on 30 days written notice to the other party (“Termination Notice”) if the other 
party materially breaches an obligation, or any representations or warranties; (ii) IP Pathways may terminate the 
Agreement on written notice to Customer in the event: (1) that Customer is in default of its payment obligations 
hereunder on two or more occasions in any six month period; and/or (2) that Customer is in breach of another 
Agreement with IP Pathways. IP Pathways may terminate this Agreement for convenience upon ninety (90) days’ prior 
written notice to Customer. Customer may terminate this Agreement for convenience upon one hundred eighty (180) 
days’ prior written notice to IP Pathways.  As stated above, each SOSS is considered to be a separate Agreement, and 
as such the termination of one SOSS shall not necessarily effectuate a termination of all Agreements with the Customer.  
As stated above, each SOSS is entered into pursuant to, and incorporates the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
and as such termination of this Agreement shall also terminate any SOSS that incorporates this Agreement. 
 

E. FEES, BILLING, AND TAXES.   Customer will pay IP Pathways such fees as provided in the SOSS and all taxes, fees or 
assessments imposed on or required to be collected by IP Pathways by any governmental agency related to any of the 
activities contemplated hereunder. Charges for Setup Fees and Non-Recurring Charges as may be indicated in the SOSS, 
shall be due and payable on the Commencement Date. Other fees shall be paid as invoiced by IP Pathways monthly. 
Payments are due within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. Late payments accrue interest at the rate of one and one-
half percent (1 1/2%) per month, or the highest rate allowed by applicable law, whichever is lower.   If Customer, in 
good faith, disputes an invoice, Customer must timely pay undisputed amounts and simultaneously provide IP Pathways 
written details of the dispute. The parties will work diligently to resolve billing disputes. All amounts owed to IP 
Pathways shall be paid promptly following resolution, together with late-payment interest fees on any amounts found 

32

Item 12.



  

 

March 15, 2022 Proprietary & Confidential  Page | 2 

to be accurate.  With written notice, IP Pathways also reserves the right to pass through to Customer any increase in 
fees and charges by third parties due hereunder upon notice to Customer of any increases in tariffs, fees, or other 
amounts charged to IP Pathways in connection with the delivery of services provided under this Agreement as of the 
date such increases are effective. 

 
 

F. SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS.  IP Pathways, in good faith, will be the sole party to determine whether IP Pathways has 
not met any of the applicable terms of a Service Level Agreement (the “SLA”), as attached to this Agreement, based 
upon the agreed to Services.  The SLAs define availability, performance and other requirements of the Service 
provisioning and delivery.  Remedies for IP Pathways not meeting the requirements are also defined within the SLA.  
Customer must at all times cooperate with IP Pathways in testing, determining and verifying that a qualifying Services 
outage has occurred. 
 

G. CONNECTIVITY SERVICES RIGHT TO MODIFY AND SERVICE UPGRADES. IP Pathways reserves the right to modify its 
network and facilities used to provide the Services so long as the modifications do not materially reduce the Services 
as provided in an applicable SLA. IP Pathways reserves the right to replace Customer’s SLA with an equivalent or 
upgraded terms of the SLA at any time during the Term.  IP Pathways shall use reasonable efforts to notify Customer of 
any planned changes to IP Pathways’ network or facilities that may adversely affect the Services provided hereunder.   
 

H. CUSTOMER OBLIGATIONS.   
 

i. Customer will maintain facilities and procedures external to the Services for reconstruction of lost or altered 
files, data or programs.  Customer understands that IP Pathways will make commercially reasonable efforts 
to provision Services.  However, Customer understands that if additional Services are ordered, the ability of 
IP Pathways to provision that service augmentation is dependent upon available capacity of IP Pathways’ 
business and staffing.  IP Pathways reserves the right to refuse provisioning of service elements that are not 
in accordance with accepted practices.  Customer will not hold IP Pathways liable for any resulting damage 
or loss due to inability to provide such additional Services described herein. 

ii. It shall be Customer’s responsibility to ensure that all devices owned by Customer, and as may be used in 
conjunction with the Services, are able to connect to IP Pathways’ equipment and are configured properly.  
This includes but is not limited to Ethernet switches, Ethernet cabling, workstations, servers and operating 
systems. 

 
I. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.  

 
i. Customer Warranties. Customer represents and warrants to IP Pathways, as applicable depending on the 

agreed to Services: (a) that it owns or has the legal right and authority, and will continue to own or maintain 
the legal right and authority during the Term, to place and use any Customer equipment; (b) that Customer’s 
services, products, materials and any Customer equipment (collectively, “Customer’s Business”) do not and 
will not operate in any manner that would violate any applicable law or regulation, and comply with all 
requirements provided for in the Agreement, (c) that Customer will not make unauthorized use of any trade 
secrets or confidential or proprietary information of IP Pathways or a third party, (d) that it will comply at all 
times with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances relating to Customer’s use of the Services. 

ii. IP Pathways Warranties.  IP Pathways represents and warrants that: (a) it will perform all Services in a 
professional manner, using qualified personnel, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the 
applicable SOSS and all applicable industry standards; (b) that in performing the Services, IP Pathways will not 
make unauthorized use of any trade secrets or confidential or proprietary information of a third party; (c) 
that IP Pathways shall have all right, title, ownership, marketing and other rights required to furnish all 
Services under this Agreement; and (d) it will comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations regarding 
the provision of the Services.   

iii. DISCLAIMERS BY IP PATHWAYS. THE SERVICES, IP PATHWAYS’ SPACE, AND/OR THE IP PATHWAYS-PROVIDED 
EQUIPMENT, ARE PROVIDED “AS IS” AND IP PATHWAYS DOES NOT MAKE, AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS, ANY AND 
ALL EXPRESS AND/OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, NONINFRINGEMENT AND TITLE, AND ANY 

33

Item 12.



  

 

March 15, 2022 Proprietary & Confidential  Page | 3 

WARRANTIES ARISING FROM A COURSE OF DEALING, USAGE, OR TRADE PRACTICE. IP PATHWAYS DOES NOT 
WARRANT THAT THE SERVICES, IP PATHWAYS’ SPACE, AND/OR THE IP PATHWAYS-PROVIDED EQUIPMENT 
WILL BE AVAILABLE UNINTERRUPTED, ERROR-FREE OR IN A COMPLETELY SECURE BASIS. IT IS INTENDED THAT 
THE FEES AND CHARGES PAYABLE BY CUSTOMER HEREUNDER SHALL BE A NET RETURN TO IP PATHWAYS, 
FREE OF EXPENSE, CHARGE, OFFSET, DIMINUTION OR OTHER DEDUCTION WHATSOEVER (EXCEPTING 
FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXES OF GENERAL APPLICATION AND THOSE EXPENSES WHICH THIS 
AGREEMENT EXPRESSLY MAKES THE RESPONSIBILITY OF IP PATHWAYS). CUSTOMER HEREBY WAIVES ALL 
RIGHTS NOW OR HEREAFTER CONFERRED BY STATUTE TO MAKE REPAIRS TO IP PATHWAYS’ SPACE AS 
PROVIDED PURSUANT TO THE SERVICES, AT IP PATHWAYS’ EXPENSE.  

 
J. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.   

 
i. IP Pathways Liability. Customer agrees, to the extent not prohibited by law, that IP Pathways shall not be 

liable for any claim involving, concerning or related to the loss or destruction of Customer data or any portion 
thereof or for any damage either to person or property sustained by Customer or by other persons due to the 
Services and/or IP Pathways’ Space or any part thereof becoming out of repair or due to the happening of 
any accident or event in or about the IP Pathways’ Space or due to the act or neglect of any occupant of the 
IP Pathways’ Space or of any other person, including, but not limited to damage caused by gas, electricity, 
power outage, snow, frost, steam, sewage, sewer gas or odors, fire, water or the bursting or leaking of pipes, 
faucets, sprinklers and plumbing fixtures (collectively, “excluded liability”), unless such excluded liability arose 
as the result of IP Pathways’ intentional misconduct or gross negligence.  

ii. Limitation. IN NO EVENT WILL IP PATHWAYS BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER, ANY EMPLOYEE, AGENT OR 
CONTRACTOR OF CUSTOMER, OR ANY THIRD PARTY FOR ANY CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS 
AGREEMENT, INCLUDING IN RELATION TO IP PATHWAYS’ SPACE, THE EQUIPMENT, THE SERVICES, 
CUSTOMER’S BUSINESS OR OTHERWISE, WHICH CLAIMS INVOLVE INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, WHETHER UNDER 
THEORY OF CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE. 
NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY IN THIS AGREEMENT, IP PATHWAYS’ MAXIMUM 
AGGREGATE LIABILITY TO CUSTOMER RELATED TO OR ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE LIMITED 
TO THE TOTAL AMOUNT PAID BY CUSTOMER TO IP PATHWAYS PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE 
TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD PRECEDING THE CLAIM.  

 
K. INDEMNIFICATION.  Customer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless IP Pathways from and against any and all 

claims, demands, actions, damages, liability, judgments, expenses and costs (including but not limited to reasonable 
attorneys’ fees) arising from (i) Customer’s use of IP Pathways’ Space, the Customer Equipment, the IP Pathways-
Provided Equipment or the Services, (ii) Customer’s Business, (iii) claims relating to such violations of IP Pathways’ Rules 
and Policies as may be amended from time to time, including but not limited to, (a) infringement or misappropriation 
of intellectual property rights, defamation, libel, slander, obscenity, pornography, or violation of rights of privacy or 
publicity, or (b) spamming, or any other offensive, harassing or illegal conduct, (iv) any breach by Customer of any 
warrant or obligation hereunder, (v) any injury to or death of any person or damage to any property occurring upon 
the IP Pathways’ Space and/or the building or the land of which the IP Pathways’ Space are a part, arising out of (or in 
connection with), or claimed to arise out of (or in connection with) Customer’s use of the IP Pathways’ Space, the 
Customer Equipment, the IP Pathways-Provided Equipment or the Services, or (vi) any action or inaction on the part of 
Customer that causes IP Pathways to be in breach of any agreement with the IP Pathways lessor, or (vii) the violation 
of any law or regulation by Customer.  

 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement or in any SOSS agreement, the Customer is not in any way 
liable for, nor shall it have any duty to hold harmless or indemnify for, claims, demands, losses, expenses or damages 
caused by the acts, errors or omissions of any person or entity other than Customer’s employees, officers or authorized 
agents.   
 

L. CONFIDENTIALITY.   Each party acknowledges that, in the course of the performance of this Agreement, it may have 
access to information claimed to be confidential by the other party ("Confidential Information"). IP Pathways may 
disclose or permit disclosure of any Confidential Information of the Customer to its employees, agents, legal counsel, 

34

Item 12.



  

 

March 15, 2022 Proprietary & Confidential  Page | 4 

accountants, or any of its affiliates and authorized representatives for the purposes of providing Services pursuant to 
this Agreement.  Confidential Information does not include information which (a) is now, or hereafter becomes, publicly 
available through lawful means; (b) was already in Receiving Party’s possession, as evidenced by Receiving Party’s 
records; (c) is rightfully disclosed to the Receiving Party by a third party; and (d) is independently developed by the 
Receiving Party without any breach of this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided, each party agrees to maintain the 
confidentiality of the Confidential Information and use it only to the extent necessitated by this Agreement.  The Parties 
shall not disclose or permit disclosure of any Confidential Information of the other party to third parties, including, but 
not limited to, the public, except as required by law. Each Party agrees that it shall take all reasonable measures to 
protect the secrecy of and avoid disclosure or use of Confidential Information of a similar nature, which shall be no less 
than reasonable care.  Upon request of either party or on termination or expiration of this Agreement, each party shall 
return the other’s Confidential Information then in its possession. As may be necessary for safety and regulations, IP 
Pathways may disclose to its lessor Confidential Information related to Customer’s use of the IP Pathways’ Space, 
provided IP Pathways’ lessor agrees to protect the Confidential Information on terms consistent with the terms of this 
Section.  The terms contained in this Section shall survive termination of this Agreement.   

 
M. NON-SOLICITATION.  Customer shall not at any time during the term of this Agreement, or during the one (1) year 

period following the last Services provided by IP Pathways pursuant to this Agreement (the "Restricted Period"), directly 
or indirectly, by, through, for or on behalf of Customer, or by, through, for or on behalf of others: (i) solicit for 
employment, retain or employ any past or present employee of IP Pathways, or (ii) request, induce, counsel or advise any 
employee of IP Pathways to leave the employ, of or cease affiliation with, IP Pathways.  Customer acknowledges and 
agrees that IP Pathways has committed and will continue to commit substantial time, personnel and resources to the 
fulfillment of IP Pathways’ obligations under this Agreement.  Customer further acknowledges and agrees that any 
breach, attempted breach or repudiation by Customer of the restrictive covenants set forth in this Section would produce 
irreparable harm and injury to IP Pathways, and it would be difficult, if not impossible, to compute IP Pathway’s actual 
damages resulting therefrom.   
 

N. IP ADDRESS OWNERSHIP. IP Pathways shall maintain and control ownership of all IP numbers and addresses that may 
be assigned to Customer by IP Pathways and IP Pathways reserves, in its sole discretion, the right to change or remove 
any and all such IP numbers and addresses.  

 
O. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY.  Customer acknowledges that, but for third party software that is provided with the Services 

and such third-party licensors provide rights to the Customer, all right, title and interest in any and all technology, 
including the software that is part of or provided with the Services and any trademarks or service marks of IP Pathways 
(collectively, “IP Pathways Intellectual Property”) is vested in IP Pathways and/or in IP Pathways’ licensors. Unless 
otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, Customer may not copy, modify or translate, or decompile, 
disassemble or reverse engineer, or use other than in connection with the Services and as permitted by this Agreement, 
or grant any other person or entity the right to, or distribute, the IP Pathways Intellectual Property or related 
documentation. 
 

P. INSURANCE. Customer shall maintain in force, at its expense, with a reputable insurance company during the Term of 
this Agreement, appropriate insurance policies to cover potential losses or liability under this Agreement, including but 
not limited to coverage for all Customer Equipment, Commercial General Liability Insurance, and Public Liability 
Insurance. 
 

Q. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF; CUMULATIVE REMEDIES.  Customer acknowledges and agrees that any breach, attempted breach or 
repudiation by Customer of the restrictive covenants set forth in Sections L, M and O of this Agreement would produce 
irreparable harm and injury to IP Pathways, and it would be difficult, if not impossible, to compute IP Pathway’s actual 
damages resulting therefrom.  Customer further acknowledges and agrees that no adequate remedy exists at law for the 
breach, attempted breach or repudiation by Customer of the restrictive covenants set forth in Sections L, M and O of this 
Agreement.  Customer therefore consents to the equity jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Iowa and acknowledges and 
agrees that an injunction is an appropriate and necessary remedy to prevent the breach, attempted breach or repudiation 
of such covenants.  Customer expressly waives and agrees to be estopped from asserting that any hardship, inconvenience 
or inequity will be suffered by Customer by submission to the equitable jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Iowa or by 
the issuance of such injunctive relief.  The provisions set forth in this Section and the remedial provisions set forth 

35

Item 12.



  

 

March 15, 2022 Proprietary & Confidential  Page | 5 

elsewhere in this Agreement, are cumulative and shall not prevent or prohibit any party hereto from exercising any 
other rights or remedies available under this Agreement, at law or in equity. 
 

R. NON-ASSIGNABILITY, DELEGATION.  The rights and duties of Customer and IP Pathways cannot be assigned by either 
party, without the advance written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  
However, in its sole discretion, IP Pathways may delegate all, or any portion thereof, of the Services to a third party. 

S. AMENDMENT.  This Agreement may not be amended, altered or modified except by written agreement between the 
parties. 

 
T. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement and all rights and duties hereunder, including but not limited to all matters of 

construction, validity and performance, shall be governed by the substantive laws of the state of Iowa, without 
reference to conflict of law principles.  Unless this Agreement expressly states that a remedy is exclusive, no remedy is 
intended to be exclusive. 

 
U. FORCE MAJEURE.  Neither party shall be liable to the extent and for the duration of the delay for any failure to perform 

its obligations under this Agreement if prevented from doing so by a cause or causes beyond its control.  Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, such causes include acts of God, or the public enemy, fires, floods, storms, 
earthquakes, riots, strikes, lockouts, wars or war operations, acts of terrorists, restraints of government or other cause 
or causes which could not with reasonable diligence be controlled or prevented by the party. 

 
V. BINDING EFFECT.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto, their respective 

successors, permitted assigns and personal representatives.  Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended 
to confer upon any other person any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement.   

 
W. SEVERABILITY.  Any term or provision of this Agreement which is invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as 

to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such invalidity or unenforceability without rendering invalid or 
unenforceable the remaining terms and provisions of this Agreement, or affecting the validity or enforceability of any 
of the terms or provisions of this Agreement in any other jurisdiction. 

 
X. WAIVER.  The failure of any party hereto to insist in any one or more instances upon performance of any term or 

condition of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of future performance of any such term, covenant or 
condition, but the obligation of such party with respect thereto shall continue in full force and effect. 

Y. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement does not and is not intended to confer any rights or remedies upon 
any person other than the parties, including but not limited to customers and clients of any Customer. 

Z. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES.  The parties intend that an independent contractor relationship be created by this 
Agreement.  Subject to the confidentiality provisions contained in this Agreement, IP Pathways shall be free to contract 
for similar services to be performed for other customers while under contract with Customer.  IP Pathways and its 
agents and employees are not to be considered an agent or employee of Customer for any purpose. 

AA. SURVIVAL. The rights and obligations of the parties in this Agreement that would by their nature or context be intended 
to survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement shall so survive.  

 
  

36

Item 12.



  

 

March 15, 2022 Proprietary & Confidential  Page | 6 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date first set forth above.  
 
 

Customer: City of Cedar Falls 

By: Rob Green, Mayor 

Signature: ___________________________  

Date: __________________________    

Address: 220 Clay St., Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

e. Rob.green@cedarfalls.com 

p. 319.273.8600 

 

IP Pathways, LLC 

By:  

Signature: ___________________________  

Date: __________________________    

e.  

p. 515.422.9300 

 

37

Item 12.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: March 9, 2022 

 SUBJECT: HOME Investment Partnership Program Consortium Cooperation   
  Agreement 
   
In 1998, the City of Cedar Falls and the City of Waterloo entered into its first HOME 
Investment Partnership Program Consortium Cooperation Agreement. This agreement 
has been jointly extended for subsequent three-year terms since 2001.  The HOME 
Program Agreement basically allows Cedar Falls and Waterloo to exist as a 
“cooperative consortium” to receive additional funding through the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for which we would otherwise be ineligible to 
receive. 
 
In order to continue receiving HUD funding, Cedar Falls and Waterloo must renew the 
Home Consortium Cooperation Agreement for the period of July 1, 2022 to June 30, 
2025.  It would cover three federal program years: 2022, 2023, 2024. The HOME 
Investment Partnership Program Consortium Cooperation Agreement is a HUD drafted 
contract that outlines applicable federal citations and regulations. 
 
The City of Cedar Falls anticipates receiving approximately $95,000 annually for 
housing-related activities for the term of the agreement.  By HUD regulations, 10% of 
the total award is allocated to the City of Waterloo as the lead entity for many of the 
administrative purposes of the grant and 15% is allocated to a locally identified non-
profit Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO).  In Federal year 2021, 
the consortium award was $491,817.  From year to year, this amount may vary.  HUD 
also publishes the split of funds to the partners in our consortium: 71% (Waterloo) and 
29% (Cedar Falls).  Therefore, after deducting the administrative and CHDO allocations, 
Cedar Falls’ funding was $102,222 in program year 2021.  Appendix A in the 
Agreement outlines how to apply the percentage split annually (using Federal 2018 
allocations) to help determine the funding split from year to year. 
 
Cedar Falls originally utilized its HOME funds to purchase lots for donation to Habitat for 
Humanity.  Infrastructure site improvements are also eligible expenses to the purchased 

38

Item 13.



lots.  To date, 21 infill residential lots have been purchased in Cedar Falls through the 
HOME Program.  Twenty-two homes, which include two townhomes, have been 
constructed on those lots by Habitat for Humanity.  Because infill lots are now scarce, 
the City has been utilizing funds toward rehabilitation grants for low to moderate income 
households similar to our CDBG program over the past six years.  In February 2021, we 
expanded our CHDO agreement with Habitat in an effort to provide HOME funds under 
a simpler conduit for Habitat projects.  Due to HOME requirements, we have continued 
to experience challenges in moving projects ahead, but continue to work on this with 
Habitat and the City of Waterloo.  
 
The HOME Consortium has been an effective partnership with the City of Waterloo and 
has allowed Cedar Falls to tap into otherwise unobtainable HUD funding.   
 
The Department of Community Development recommends the City Council adopt a 
resolution approving and authorizing execution of a continued HOME Investment 
Partnership Program Consortium Cooperation Agreement with the City of Waterloo.   
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 

39

Item 13.



  

1 of 8 

 

HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM 

CONSORTIUM COOPERATION AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FISCAL YEARS 2022, 2023 AND 2024 

    (October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2025) 

 
City Program Years 

(July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2025) 

 
 

THIS CONSORTIUM COOPERATION AGREEMENT is entered into by and between 

the City of Cedar Falls, a Municipal Corporation in Black Hawk County, Iowa (sometimes 

hereinafter referred to as the "City") and the City of Waterloo, a Municipal Corporation in Black 

Hawk County, Iowa (hereinafter referred to as the "Lead Entity") for the purpose of continuing a 

HOME Consortium pursuant to the HOME Investment Partnerships Act (hereinafter referred to 

as the "HOME Program"); Title II of the Cranston-Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act, 

as amended (42 U.S.C. 12701 et seq.) (hereinafter referred to as the "Act"). 

 

WHEREAS, Section 216(2) of the Act provides that a consortium of geographically 

contiguous units of general local government is considered a unit of general local government for 

purposes of the Home Investment Partnerships Program if the Secretary of the U.S. Department 

of Housing and Urban Development (hereinafter referred to as "HUD") determines that the 

consortium has sufficient authority and administrative capability to carry out the purposes of the 

Act on behalf of its member jurisdictions and will direct its activities to the alleviation of housing 

problems within States; and, 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 217(b)(3) of the Act, HUD will include, as 

jurisdictions eligible to receive allocations of HOME funds by formula, approved consortia of 

units of general local government; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and the City of Waterloo, Iowa, desire to 

enter into a HOME Program Consortium Agreement for the purpose of expanding the supply of 

decent, safe, sanitary and affordable housing for low and moderate-income residents. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these mutual covenants, the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and the City of Waterloo, Iowa do hereby agree as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.     DEFINITIONS-ABBREVIATIONS 

 
1.1 "City" shall mean - the City of Cedar Falls, an Iowa Municipal Corporation. 

 

1.2 "Lead Entity" shall mean - the City of Waterloo, an Iowa Municipal Corporation. 

 

1.3 "HUD" shall mean - the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

 

1.4 "Act" shall mean - the Cranston-Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act, as amended 

40

Item 13.



  

2 of 8 

 

(42 U.S.C. 12701 et seq.). 

 

1.5 "HOME Program" shall mean - the program conducted under the provision of the 

Cranston-Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act, Title II, Subtitle A - HOME 

Investment Partnerships Program (P.L. 101-625) and the Code of Federal Regulations 

(24 CFR Part 92). 

 

1.6 "HOME Funds" shall mean - HOME Program Entitlement Grant Funds awarded by the 

Secretary of HUD to the Consortium in accordance with the allocation formula prescribed by 

HUD. 

 

1.7 "Consortium" or "HOME Consortium" shall mean - a consortium of geographically 

contiguous units of general local government, which HUD treats as a single unit of local 

government under the HOME Program, formed for the purpose of furthering the objectives of 

the HOME Program.  Under this Agreement, the cities of Cedar Falls and Waterloo comprise 

the HOME Consortium. 

 

1.8 "Housing Unit or Units" shall mean - decent, safe, sanitary and affordable housing developed 

or assisted with HOME Funds pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

1.9 "Qualification Period" shall mean - the Federal Fiscal Years for which the HOME 

Consortium is to qualify to receive allocations as a participating jurisdiction in the HOME 

Program. 

 

SECTION 2.     RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 

 

2.1 Pursuant to this Agreement, the City and the Lead Entity agree to cooperate to undertake 

or to assist in undertaking housing assistance activities for the HOME Program. 

 

2.2 The Lead Entity shall act in a representative capacity for all member units of general 

local government, or the Consortium members, for the purposes of the HOME Program. 

 

2.3 The Lead Entity shall assume overall responsibility for ensuring that the Consortium's 

HOME Program is carried out in compliance with the requirements of the HOME 

Program, including requirements concerning a Consolidated Submission of Community 

Planning and Development Programs ("Consolidated Plan") in accordance with HUD 

regulation in 24 CFR Parts 91 and 92.   

 

2.3.1 This Agreement does not contain a provision for veto or other restriction that 

would allow any member unit of local government to obstruct the implementation of the 

Consortium's approved Consolidated Plan. 

 

2.3.2 The 5- Year Consolidated Plan document shall be prepared by Lead Entity in 

collaboration with staff from City.  If a consulting firm is hired to prepare said document, 

Lead Entity and City will come to a mutually acceptable agreement to split the cost of the 

consulting firm.   

41

Item 13.



  

3 of 8 

 

 

2.3.3 Lead Entity and City agree that necessary adjustments to the Consolidated Plan 

development process will be made when necessary as required by the United States 

Department of Housing and Urban Development, including, but not limited to, any 

Consolidated Plan process. 

 

2.3.4 The Lead Entity shall initiate the 5-Year Consolidated Plan and Annual Action 

Plans in IDIS for Lead Entity and City, and submit to HUD on IDIS.   Annual reporting 

(CAPER) will be completed by each entity separately in IDIS. 

 

2.4 The Lead Entity and/or City if necessary, shall secure from the State of Iowa a written 

certification that the Consortium will direct its activities to the alleviation of housing 

problems within the State of Iowa. 

 

 

2.5 The Lead Entity shall submit to HUD the required HOME Consortia qualification 

documents including required certifications and a fully executed Consortium Cooperation 

Agreement. 

 

2.6 The Lead Entity and the City shall act affirmatively to further fair housing by: 

 

2.6.1 Employing affirmative marketing procedures in the advertising and marketing 

of Housing Units, and 

 

2.6.2 Conforming to the non-discrimination provisions hereinafter set forth. 

 

2.7 Lead Entity, after approval by City, is hereby authorized to amend this Consortium 

Agreement, on behalf of the Consortium, for the purpose of adding new members to the 

Consortium. 

 

 2.7.1 Should it become necessary to change the language of this Agreement to meet 

HUD approval, without making major changes and without altering the intent of the 

Agreement, such changes may be made administratively with written consent of the 

Consortium staff. 

 

 2.7.2 This Agreement may be amended for purposes other than those described in 2.7 

and 2.7.1 above by written Agreement of the Lead Entity and City. 

 

2.8 Lead Entity and City each shall be solely responsible for such individual financial and/or 

legal responsibilities which may arise from participation as a member of this Consortium. 

 

2.9 Lead Entity and City each shall be solely responsible for the administration of their 

respective HOME Programs including: 

 

 

42

Item 13.



  

4 of 8 

 

 

2.9.1 The development of Housing Units within their respective jurisdictions, and the 

use of any public or private funds or loans, or other means of financial 

assistance. 

 

2.9.2 Additionally, any real or personal property acquired pursuant to this Agreement 

shall be acquired and maintained in the name of the individual Consortium 

member performing the acquisition. 

 

2.9.3 Members will abide by their own local codes and standards but acknowledge 

that in federally funded projects, they are subject to the regulations for 

addressing lead-paint hazards. 

 

2.10  Match obligations will be met for City by using carryover match funds reported by Lead 

Entity and reported at the end of the fiscal year. If City completes a project with contributing 

match it may be reported to the Lead Entity during the request for reimbursement. 

 

2.11  Program Income generated by Lead Entity or City with HOME funds will be accounted 

for in IDIS reporting and used for eligible activities by each agency separately. 

 

2.12  It is the City’s responsibility to assure compliance with all HOME requirements during 

project implementation and the affordability period.  The Lead Entity has the right to monitor 

projects compliance.  City will submit to Lead Entity the Environmental Review (ER) for each 

HOME project, and Lead Entity will approve the ER, before said project begins by City.   

 

2.13 City and Lead Entity will follow the regulations of the HOME Final Rule of 2013.   

 

  

SECTION 3.     PROVISIONS OF THE AGREEMENT 

 

3.1 Lead Entity and City agree that the Consortium start date shall be July 1, 2022, and that 

they, and any new members added to this Consortium, pursuant to Section 2.7 above, 

shall establish July 1 through June 30 as their respective fiscal year for the following 

Federal programs:  1) the Community Development Block Grant under Title I of the 

Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (PL 93-383),   2) the 

Home Investment Partnership Program under Title II of the Cranston-Gonzalez National 

Affordable Housing Act, as amended, (PL 101-625),  3) the Emergency Shelter Grant 

Program under Subtitle B of Title IV of the Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance 

Act of 1988, as amended (PL 100-628), and  4) the Housing Opportunities for Persons 

With Aids Program under Title II of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing 

Act, as Amended, (PL 101-625), as applicable. 

 

3.2 Though this Agreement may be amended, no Consortium member, including any new 

member added pursuant to Section 2.7 above, may withdraw from this Agreement while 

it remains in effect.  A member desiring to terminate the Agreement and its participation 

43

Item 13.



  

5 of 8 

 

in the Waterloo HOME Consortium may do so by giving no less than 6 months prior 

written notice.  The notice must be sent to the Lead Entity at the addresses appearing on 

the signature page and the notice must specify the effective date of the termination.  The 

Agreement will terminate on the effective date specified in the notice.   

 

3.3 For the Lead Entity and City, this Agreement is made and entered into pursuant to: 

 

3.3.1 Iowa Code, Chapter 364 (2015), entitled "Powers and Duties of Cities”. 

 

3.4 The parties to this Agreement shall not, in the performance of this Agreement, 

discriminate or permit discrimination in violation of Federal or other laws or local 

ordinances because of race, color, handicap, familial status, sex, age, political or religious 

opinions, affiliations or national origin.  

 

SECTION 4.     DISTRIBUTION OF HOME FUNDS 

 

4.1 Lead Entity shall be the recipient of each annual allocation of HOME Funds awarded to 

the Consortium by HUD and shall secure such funds in a manner prescribed by HUD. 

 

4.2 For each annual allocation of HOME Funds, funds will be disbursed as follows: 

 

4.2.1 10% of the entire annual HOME allocation will go to Lead Entity for allowable 

administration/planning costs of the HOME Program. 

 

 

4.2.2 The annual HOME allocation will be allocated 72% to Lead Entity and 28% to 

City unless an alternate mutually agreeable allocation formula is approved by 

Lead Entity and City. Formula breakdown is based on HUD FY18 HOME 

Consortium Share Report. 

 

4.2.3 15% of each annual HOME allocation after 72/28 split goes to local Community 

Housing Development Organization(s) (CHDO). The CHDO may use each 

allocation in the corresponding jurisdiction. If the CHDO is unable to use the 

City’s allocation in City’s jurisdiction it may be used in the Lead Entity’s 

jurisdiction.  The Lead Entity will oversee the CHDO requirements. Please see 

Appendix A for a sample breakdown of funding. 

 

4.2.4 The allocation formula listed in 4.2.2 will be revised should additional members 

be added to the HOME Consortium.  The revised allocation formula must be 

approved by Lead Entity and City before any additional members may be 

added. 

 

4.2.5 City may not expend HOME Funds for any administrative or planning 

expenses. 

 

44

Item 13.



  

6 of 8 

 

4.2.6 HOME Funds shall be allocated to City through correspondence when Lead 

Entity receives Authority to Use Grant Funds from HUD.  

                                                             

4.3 Some members existing programs may need to be modified if carried out with HOME 

funds, but the Consortium Activities do not impact CDBG-funded programs.   

 
 

SECTION 5.     TERM OF THE AGREEMENT/QUALIFICATION PERIOD 

 

5.1 This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period of three years beginning on 

October 1, 2022, and ending September 30, 2025, said period comprising the 

Qualification Period, or until such time the HOME Funds are closed out as specified in 

Section 5.3, below. City program years are July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2025.  

  

 By the date specified in HUD’s consortia designation notices, the consortium lead entity 

will notify each participating unit of general local government in writing of its right not 

to participate for the successive three-year qualification periods. 

 

 The consortium will adopt any amendment to the agreement incorporating changes 

necessary to meet the requirements for cooperation agreements set forth in a Consortia 

Qualification Notice applicable for a subsequent three-year consortia qualification period, 

and to submit the amendment to HUD as specified in the Consortia Qualification Notice 

for that period, and that failure to comply will void the automatic renewal of the consortia 

agreement. 

 

5.2 The Federal fiscal years of this Agreement shall include FY 2022, 2023, and 2024. 

 

5.3 Notwithstanding the above, this Agreement shall remain in effect until the HOME Funds  

from each of the Federal Fiscal Years of the Qualification Period are closed out pursuant 

to 24 CFR 92.507. 

 

 

SECTION 6.     AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES 

 

In further consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto 

expressly agree that for purposes of notice, including legal service of process, during the term of 

this Agreement, and for the period of any applicable statute of limitations thereafter, the 

following named individuals or their successors shall be authorized representatives of the parties: 

 

 

(1) Quentin Hart, Mayor 

City of Waterloo 

715 Mulberry Street 

 Waterloo, Iowa  50703 

 

45

Item 13.



  

7 of 8 

 

(2) Robert M. Green, Mayor 

City of Cedar Falls 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 

With copies to: 

 

(3) Rudy D. Jones 

 Community Development Director 

620 Mulberry Street 

Waterloo, Iowa  50703 

 

and 

 

(4) Stephanie Sheetz 

Director of Community Development 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa  50613 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date 

indicated below. 

 

ATTEST:      CITY OF WATERLOO: 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

City Clerk      Quentin Hart, Mayor 

City of Waterloo, Iowa    City of Waterloo, Iowa 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Date       Date 

 

 

ATTEST:      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

City Clerk      Robert M. Green, Mayor 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa    City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Date       Date 

46

Item 13.



  

8 of 8 

 

                                        Appendix A 
 

                                                          Sample 

                                    Annual HOME Allocation $453,196.00 

 

 

Waterloo Allocation 72%    Cedar Falls Allocation 28% 

                                       

                                   Administration Fee Calculation 

 

$453,196.00                                                                $453,196.00 

X            .72       Allocation %                                          X            .28     Allocation %  

$326,301.00                                                                 $126,895.00 

X            .10      minus 10% Admin to Lead Entity                   X            .10     minus 10% Admin to Lead Entity 

  $32,630.00                                                                   $12,689.00 

 

                                                      $32,630.00 

                                                      $12,689.00 

 Total Admin to Lead Entity =     $45,319.00 

 

 

   CHDO Allocation Calculation 

 

$453,196.00      $453,196.00 

X            .72    Allocation %      X            .28   Allocation % 

$326,301.00                                 $126,895.00  

X            .15    Min. CHDO Allocation                                X            .15   Min. CHDO Allocation  

  $48,945.00                                                                  $19,034.00 

 

  

 $48,945.00   - Must be used in Lead Entity’s jurisdiction 

 $19,034.00   - May be used in City’s jurisdiction. If no project is feasible funds may be  

Total CHDO allocation =         $67,979.00     used in Lead Entity’s jurisdiction. 

 

 

 

    Net Allocations 
 

 

$326,301.00 72% Allocation           $126,895.00 28% Allocation   

- $32,630.00    Admin                                                 - $12,689.00 Admin 

- $48,945.00    CHDO                                                 - $19,034.00 CHDO  

 

$244,726.00       $95,172.00 
  Lead Entity City 

47

Item 13.



48

Item 14.



49

Item 14.



50

Item 14.



51

Item 14.



52

Item 14.



53

Item 14.



54

Item 14.



55

Item 14.



56

Item 14.



57

Item 14.



58

Item 14.



59

Item 14.



60

Item 14.



61

Item 14.



62

Item 14.



63

Item 14.



64

Item 14.



65

Item 14.



66

Item 14.



67

Item 14.



68

Item 14.



69

Item 14.



70

Item 14.



71

Item 14.



72

Item 14.



73

Item 14.



74

Item 14.



75

Item 14.



76

Item 14.



77

Item 14.



78

Item 14.



79

Item 14.



80

Item 14.



81

Item 14.



82

Item 14.



83

Item 14.



84

Item 14.



85

Item 14.



86

Item 14.



87

Item 14.



88

Item 14.



89

Item 14.



90

Item 14.



91

Item 14.



92

Item 14.



93

Item 14.



94

Item 14.



95

Item 14.



96

Item 14.



97

Item 14.



98

Item 14.



99

Item 14.



100

Item 14.



101

Item 14.



102

Item 14.



103

Item 14.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: March 11, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: W. 12th Street Reconstruction 
   City Project Number: RC-059-3196 
   Project Final Out 
 
The West 12th Street Reconstruction Project is completed and ready for final 
acceptance. This project involved the reconstruction of portions of two (2) City streets, 
W. 12th Street from Tremont to College Street and Walnut Street from 11th Street to 12th 
Street. In addition to full street reconstruction, the project also included underground 
utility work such as storm sewer and water main replacement. This project was under 
contract with Peterson Contractors Inc. of Reinbeck, Iowa. Attached please find the 
following final documents: 
  -  Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
   -  Maintenance Bond, Peterson Contractors Inc. 
   
The following lien waivers have been received, reviewed by the Engineering Division 
and are on file with the City Clerk: 
 
Peterson Contractors Inc. Suppliers: 
Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete Inc. 
Talaska Trucking  
BMC Aggregates LC. 
Leymaster Tile LLC 
Manatts Inc DM 
Utility Equipment Company. 
Midstates Precast Products 
Northern Iowa Construction Products 
Matthias Landscaping Company   
Meli LLC  
K. Cunningham Construction Co. 

 

Peterson Contractors Inc.  
Subcontractors including subcontractor suppliers: 
K. Cunningham Construction Co. 
   - Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete Inc. 
   -Construction Materials, Inc. 
Matthias Landscaping Co 
   - Oleson Sod Farm  
Service Signing, LC 
Bowers 
   - Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete Inc. 
 

 104

Item 15.



With Council approval, a transfer of funds from the following funding sources to the 
Street Improvement Fund will be made, per Iowa Code 545-2.5. 
 

Funding Source Attributed Costs 

Local Sales Tax  $800,000.00 

Street Construction Fund  $101,973.52 

Cedar Falls Utilities $129,525.00 

 
I certify that the public improvements for the W. 12th Street Reconstruction Project were 
completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans and specifications. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
            Brett Armstrong   Date 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
 
 
 
 

3/11/22 

105

Item 15.



2/25/2022

106

Item 15.



107

Item 15.



108

Item 15.



109

Item 15.



110

Item 15.



111

Item 15.



112

Item 15.



113

Item 15.



114

Item 15.



115

Item 15.



116

Item 15.



117

Item 15.



118

Item 15.



119

Item 15.



120

Item 15.



121

Item 15.



122

Item 15.



123

Item 15.



124

Item 15.



125

Item 15.



126

Item 15.



127

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: March 14th, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 Street Construction Project 
  Project No. RC-000-3230 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with Peterson 
Contractors, Inc for the construction of the 2022 Street Construction Project.  
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract 
with Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the construction of the 2022 Street Construction 
Project. This project involves the full removal and replacement of two (2) streets, HMA 
restoration on three (3) streets, and a significant water main replacement and patch on 
one (1) street.   
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

128

Item 16.



129

Item 16.



130

Item 16.



131

Item 16.



132

Item 16.



133

Item 16.



134

Item 16.



135

Item 16.



136

Item 16.



137

Item 16.



138

Item 16.



139

Item 16.



140

Item 16.



141

Item 16.



142

Item 16.



143

Item 16.



144

Item 16.



145

Item 16.



146

Item 16.



147

Item 16.



148

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: March 14, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project 
  City Project Number: SA-000-3297 
  Bid Opening 
   

On Friday, March 11, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. bids were received and opened for the 2022 
CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. A total of two (2) bids were received, with 
Municipal Pipe Tool Company the low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $248,119.50 

Municipal Pipe Tool Company $286,395.50 

Insituform Technologies  $432,706.20 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $248,119.50. Municipal Pipe Tool 
Company of Hudson, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $286,395.50. 
Attached is a bid tabulation for your reference. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends acceptance of 
the lowest bid from Municipal Pipe Tool Company in the amount of $286,395.50. On 
April 4, 2022, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City 
Council approval. 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer   
 
 

149

Item 17.



Line Item Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

1 PIPE LINING, 8 INCH L.F. 7111 $20.50 $145,775.50 $25.50 $181,330.50 $35.90 $255,284.90

2 PIPE LINING, 12 INCH L.F. 1098 $28.00 $30,744.00 $32.50 $35,685.00 $60.00 $65,880.00

3 BUILDING SANITARY SEWER SERVICE RECONNECTION EACH 185 $50.00 $9,250.00 $313.00 $57,905.00 $91.00 $16,835.00

4 GROUTING SERVICE LATERALS EACH 185 $310.00 $57,350.00 $35.00 $6,475.00 $322.90 $59,736.50

5 MOBILIZATION L.S. 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $34,969.80 $34,969.80

Base Bid Total: $248,119.50 $286,395.50 $432,706.20

2022 CDBG SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT (#8103628)

Owner: Cedar Falls IA, City of

Solicitor: Cedar Falls IA, City of

03/11/2022 02:00 PM CST

Engineer Estimate Municipal Pipe Tool Company Insituform Technologies

150

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: March 15, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement Project 
  City Project Number: BR-106-3215   
  Property Acquisitions & Temporary Easements 

 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to remove and replace the existing 2 span slab 
bridge at Olive Street with a twin box culvert. The existing bridge will be replaced with a 
box culvert extending from the existing College Street Culvert to the east side of Olive 
Street, downstream channel improvements will be incorporated, sidewalk improvements 
for walkability to the College Hill corridor, and placement of a new road above the 
culvert. The project will include improvements to the water main, storm sewer and 
sanitary sewer. Right-of-way acquired for the project will be used for culvert alignment 
and stream channel restorations. The project will require the acquisition of right-of-way, 

temporary and permanent easements from four (4) properties. Attached is a map that identifies 

the location of these properties. The owner of the following property has accepted our 
offer: 
 
Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

Michael B. Geisler and Jeanette A. Geisler 2016 Olive Street Fee Title 

 
The City will use General Obligation and Tax Increment Financing for the design and right-of-
way portion of this project. The City entered into a Professional Services Agreement with 
AECOM Technical Services, Inc., of Waterloo, Iowa, on January 6th, 2020 for property 
acquisition and design services. Funds for this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital 
Improvements Program in FY22 and FY23 under item number 80. If approved, the City Attorney 
will prepare the necessary closing documents and staff will complete the acquisition process for 
these parcels. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City Council 
state their support in the form of a resolution approving the acquisition and authorize the Mayor 
to execute the agreement for the Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement Project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

151

Item 18.



LEGEND

JUNE 2020

ROW EXHIBIT

CULVERT REPLACEMENT

OLIVE STREET BOX 

CITY PROJECT NUMBER: BR-106-3215

AECOM PROJECT NUMBER: 60623997
CITY OF CEDAR FALLSpermanent easement

TEMPORARY EASEMENT

TEMP. EASEMENT LINES

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINES

CF102

City Of Cedar Falls

CF101

2017-2019 Olive St

CV Commercial LLC

CF104

2016 Olive St

Geisler, Michael B

City Of Cedar Falls

City Of Cedar Falls

CF103

2010 Olive St

Cunningham, Eugene

Cunningham, Mark

2005 Olive St

Contract Buyer Eilers, Dwayne II

Mukai, Karen B Trust

Mukai, Teru Trust

2009 Olive St

Contract Buyer Eilers, Dwayne II

Mukai, Karen B Trust

Mukai, Teru Trust

Existing Easement

Existing Easement

O

FEET

20

152

Item 18.



153

Item 18.



154

Item 18.



155

Item 18.



156

Item 18.



157

Item 18.



158

Item 18.



WARRANTY DEED
(Several Grantors)

Recorder’s Cover Sheet

Preparer Information: Kevin Rogers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone: (319) 
273-8600

Taxpayer Information: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Return Document To: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Grantors: Michael B. Geisler and Jeanette A. Geisler

Grantees: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

Legal Description:  See Page 2

Document or instrument number of previously recorded documents:  

159

Item 18.



©The Iowa State Bar Association 2022
IowaDocs®

Form No. 102, Warranty Deed Several Grantors
Revised January 2016

WARRANTY DEED
(Several Grantors)

For the consideration of One Dollar(s) and other valuable consideration, Michael B. Geisler 
and Jeanette A. Geisler, husband and wife, do hereby Convey to City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, a 
municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of Iowa, the following described real 
estate in Black Hawk County, Iowa:

Lot 6, Block 14, Rail Road Addition to Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

Grantors do Hereby Covenant with grantees, and successors in interest, that grantors hold 
the real estate by title in fee simple; that they have good and lawful authority to sell and convey 
the real estate; that the real estate is free and clear of all liens and encumbrances except as may be 
above stated; and grantors Covenant to Warrant and Defend the real estate against the lawful 
claims of all persons except as may be above stated. Each of the undersigned hereby relinquishes 
all rights of dower, homestead and distributive share in and to the real estate.

Words and phrases herein, including acknowledgment hereof, shall be construed as in the 
singular or plural number, and as masculine or feminine gender, according to the context.

Dated:  __________________________.

_______________________________
Michael B. Geisler, Grantor

_______________________________
Jeanette A. Geisler, Grantor

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK

This record was acknowledged before me on _________________________________ by 
Michael B. Geisler and Jeanette A. Geisler, husband and wife.

_________________________________
Signature of Notary Public

160

Item 18.



Effective On or Before 07/01/16 Page 1 ISBA 57-006a (03/15/16) 

CTRL # 

REAL ESTATE TRANSFER - DECLARATION OF VALUE 
Please read the instructions comprised in form 57-011 before completing and filing this form. 

Part I - TO BE COMPLETED BY BUYER, SELLER OR AGENT

Date of Instrument (MMDDYYYY)  

Enter the number matching your selection in the box at the end of the line: Deed (1) Contract (2) 

Seller: Phone Number: 

Seller Address:  City: 

State: ZIP: email:  

Buyer:  Phone Number: 

Buyer Address: City: 

State: ZIP: email: 

Address of Property Conveyed: 

City:  State:   ZIP: 

Legal Description: 

Enter the number corresponding to your selection in the box at the end of the line, if applicable. 

Type of Sale: Sale between related parties/family (1); Sale of partial interest (2); Trade (3); Quit Claim Deed (4); Auction (5) 

Was this a sale of agricultural land to: Corporation (1); Trust (2); Alien (3); Non-resident Alien (4); Limited Partnership (5)

DECLARATION OF VALUE STATEMENT 

1. Total Amount Paid ....................................................................  

2. Amount Paid for Personal Property ..........................................  

3. Amount Paid for Real Property .................................................  

I hereby declare that the information contained in Part I of this form is true and correct. 

Printed Name:   Phone Number:  

Signature:  Buyer  or Seller or Agent or Attorney

.00 

.00 

.00 

C O Y Y Y Y M M # # # # # 

,

,,,
,

,

,

,

1

Michael B. Geisler and Jeanette A. Geisler

5373 S. Hudson Road Cedar Falls

Iowa 50613

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 273-8600

220 Clay Street Cedar Falls

Iowa 50613

2016 Olive Street

Cedar Falls Iowa 50613

See Addendum 1

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

1 1 0 0 0 0

1 1 0 0 0 0

161

Item 18.



Real Estate Transfer – Declaration of Value, Page 2 

Effective on or before 07/01/16 Page 2 ISBA 57-006b (03/15/16) 

Part II - TO BE COMPLETED BY THE ASSESSOR 
Assessed values must be as of January 1 of the year in which the sale occurred.

SECTION A: SINGLE CLASSIFICATION 

Primary Classification: Residential (4); Commercial (5); Industrial (2); Agricultural (1); Multi-residential (7) 

City/Township:  Occupancy: 

Primary Parcel Number:  Year Built: 

Class Land Building Dwelling 

Res ,
.

.00 , , .00 , , .00 

Com ,
.

.00 , , .00 

Ind ,
.

.00 , , .00 

Ag ,
.

.00 , , .00 , , .00 

MultiRes ,
.

.00 , , .00 , , .00 

Subtotal ..........................  

SECTION B: DUAL CLASSIFICATION 

Primary Classification: Commercial (5); Industrial (2); Multi-residential (7) 

City/Township:  Occupancy:  

Primary Parcel Number:  Year Built: 

Class Land Building Dwelling 

Com ,
.

.00 , , .00 

Ind ,
.

.00 , , .00 

MultiRes ,
.

.00 , , .00 , , .00 

Subtotal ....................................................................  

Total: Add Subtotal amounts from Sections A and B  .................... 

Enter amount from line 3, page 1 ...............................................  

Ratio: Divide Total amount by the amount on line 3, page 1  ........................... : % 

NUTC 

Jurisdiction 

Comments: 

 , . 

, , .00 

, , .00 

, , .00 

, , .00 

162

Item 18.



Addendum 1 

Legal Description of Property Conveyed: 

Lot 6, Block 14, Rail Road Addition to Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa.

163

Item 18.



FILE WITH RECORDER DNR form 542-0960 (July 18, 2012)

REAL ESTATE TRANSFER - GROUNDWATER HAZARD STATEMENT
TO BE COMPLETED BY TRANSFEROR

TRANSFEROR:  
Name: Michael B. Geisler and Jeanette A. Geisler
Address: 5373 S. Hudson Road, Cedar Falls, IA 50613

TRANSFEREE: 
Name: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Address: 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Address of Property Transferred:
2016 Olive Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa  50613

Legal Description of Property: (Attach if necessary) 
Lot 6, Block 14, Rail Road Addition to Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

1.  Wells (check one)
☒ There are no known wells situated on this property.
☐ There is a well or wells situated on this property.  The type(s), location(s) and legal status are stated below 

or set forth on an attached separate sheet, as necessary.
2.  Solid Waste Disposal (check one)

☒ There is no known solid waste disposal site on this property.
☐ There is a solid waste disposal site on this property and information related thereto is provided in 

Attachment #1, attached to this document.
3.  Hazardous Wastes (check one)

☒ There is no known hazardous waste on this property.
☐ There is hazardous waste on this property and information related thereto is provided in Attachment #1, 

attached to this document.
4.  Underground Storage Tanks (check one)

☒ There are no known underground storage tanks on this property.  (Note exclusions such as small farm and 
residential motor fuel tanks, most heating oil tanks, cisterns and septic tanks, in instructions.)

☐ There is an underground storage tank on this property.  The type(s), size(s) and any known substance(s) 
contained are listed below or on an attached separate sheet, as necessary.

5.  Private Burial Site (check one)
☒ There are no known private burial sites on this property.
☐ There is a private burial site on this property.  The location(s) of the site(s) and known identifying 

information of the decedent(s) is stated below or on an attached separate sheet, as necessary.
6.  Private Sewage Disposal System (check one)

☒ All buildings on this property are served by a public or semi-public sewage disposal system.
☐ This transaction does not involve the transfer of any building which has or is required by law to have a 

164

Item 18.



FILE WITH RECORDER DNR form 542-0960 (July 18, 2012)

sewage disposal system.
☐ There is a building served by private sewage disposal system on this property or a building without any 

lawful sewage disposal system.  A certified inspector’s report is attached which documents the condition of 
the private sewage disposal system and whether any modifications are required to conform to standards 
adopted by the Department of Natural Resources.  A certified inspection report must be accompanied by 
this form when recording.

☐ There is a building served by private sewage disposal system on this property.  Weather or other 
temporary physical conditions prevent the certified inspection of the private sewage disposal system from 
being conducted.  The buyer has executed a binding acknowledgment with the county board of health to 
conduct a certified inspection of the private sewage disposal system at the earliest practicable time and to 
be responsible for any required modifications to the private sewage disposal system as identified by the 
certified inspection.  A copy of the binding acknowledgment is attached to this form.  

☐ There is a building served by private sewage disposal system on this property.  The buyer has executed a 
binding acknowledgment with the county board of health to install a new private sewage disposal system 
on this property within an agreed upon time period. A copy of the binding acknowledgment is provided 
with this form.

☐ There is a building served by private sewage disposal system on this property.  The building to which the 
sewage disposal system is connected will be demolished without being occupied. The buyer has executed a 
binding acknowledgment with the county board of health to demolish the building within an agreed upon 
time period. A copy of the binding acknowledgment is provided with this form.  [Exemption #9]

☐ This property is exempt from the private sewage disposal inspection requirements pursuant to the 
following exemption [Note: for exemption #9 use prior check box]:  ____________.

☐ The private sewage disposal system has been installed within the past two years pursuant to permit 
number ____________.

Information required by statements checked above should be provided here or on separate sheets attached 
hereto:

__________

I HEREBY DECLARE THAT I HAVE REVIEWED THE INSTRUCTIONS 
FOR THIS FORM AND THAT THE INFORMATION STATED 

ABOVE IS TRUE AND CORRECT.

Signature:  _______________________________________  Telephone No.:  __________
(Transferor)

165

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: March 14, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: College Hill Parking Lot Improvements Project 
  City Project Number: PL-101-3264 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the College Hill Parking Lot Improvements Project. 
 

We recommend setting Monday, April 4, 2022 at 7:00pm as the date and time for the 
public hearing on this project and Friday, April 8, 2022, at 2pm as the date and time for 
receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders be published by 
Friday, March 25, 2022. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for distribution to 
contractors on Tuesday, March 22, 2022 via QuestCDN (reference #8156662), allowing 
more than two (2) weeks of review before contract letting. 
 

This project includes the restoration of approximately 45,126 square feet of ACC 
parking lots in the College Hill district. This work includes removal of existing ACC 
surface and placement of new HMA. Spot repairs of the curb and gutter and remarking 
of the pavement markings.  
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $150,252.20. The project 
will be funded by the College Hill TIF District.  
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the College Hill Parking 
Lot Improvements Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

166

Item 19.



COLLEGE HILL PARKING  

BLACK HAWK COUNTY

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

LOT IMPROVEMENTS

MILL & OVERLAY

 3/14/2022    

167

Item 19.



TYPICAL MILL & OVERLAY SECTION

NOT TO SCALE

PCC FLUME SECTION VIEW

NOT TO SCALE

PCC FLUME PLAN VIEW

NOT TO SCALE

168

Item 19.



ITEM # DESCRIPTION

1. REFER TO SHEET D.01 FOR LOCATIONS. REFER TO SHEET B.01 FOR TYPICAL SECTION. CROSS SLOPE CORRECTIONS WILL BE 

INCIDENTAL TO BASE COURSE.

2. REFER TO SHEET D.01 FOR LOCATIONS. REFER TO SHEET B.01 FOR TYPICAL SECTION. CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE ANY UTILITY SERVICE 

CASTINGS ARE FLUSH WITH FINAL SURFACE.

3. ITEM IS FOR DAMAGED CURB SECTIONS TO BE REMOVED AND REPLACED PRIOR TO ASPHALT OPERATIONS. CURB & GUTTER IS 

INCIDENTAL TO BID ITEM. SAWCUTTING AND REMOVAL IS INCIDENTAL TO BID ITEM. RESTORING DISTURBED TOPSOIL OR VEGETATION IS

INCIDENTAL TO BID ITEM. CONTRACTOR TO PIN NEW CURB SECTIONS TO ADJACENT CURB WITH #4 REBAR AT 1' ON CENTER. JOINT 

SEALING INCIDENTAL TO BID ITEM.

4. REFER TO SHEET D.01 FOR LOCATIONS. REFER TO SHEET B.01 FOR TYPICAL SECTION. EXISTING PCC C&G WILL NOT BE MILLED. ITEM 

WILL BE PAID PER PLAN QUANTITY.

5. REFER TO N.01 FOR LOCATIONS AND C.03 FOR TABULATIONS.

6. REFER TO N.01 FOR LOCATIONS AND C.03 FOR TABULATIONS.

7. ITEM IS TO BE USED FOR DURING CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS AND LOT CLOSURES.

8. REFER TO SHEET D.01 FOR LOCATION. QUANTITY IS ESTIMATED, TOTAL QUANTITY WILL BE DETERMINED IN FIELD. BID ITEM INCLUDES 

INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE, & REMOVAL WHEN DIRECTED BY CITY ENGINEER.

9. REFER TO SUDAS SECTION 11.020.

10. REFER TO DETAIL ON SHEET B.01 FOR TYPICAL SECTION OF FLUME. ADJACENT CURBS MAY BE SAWED OFF FLUSH WITH GUTTER  

FOR REMOVAL OR COMPLETELY REMOVED AND POURED BACK. MODIFIED SUBBASE INCIDENTAL TO BID ITEM. JOINT SEALING 

INCIDENTAL TO BID ITEM.

169

Item 19.



“ ”

“ ”

170

Item 19.



171

Item 19.



172

Item 19.



173

Item 19.



1  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PROJECT MANUAL 

FOR 

COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS 

PROJECT 
 
 

Project PL-101-3264 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION 

 

 
I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by me or 
under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly licensed 
professional engineer under the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 
__________________________________  Date: 3/14/2022    
David Wicke, P.E.           Iowa License No. 25684 
My license renewal date is December  31, 2022 
 
Pages or sheets covered by this seal: 1-27. 

 

 

 

174

Item 19.



2 
 

 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  

 
 
 

TITLE SHEET 

 
Page Number 

 
1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 2-3 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 4 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
 
Instruction to Bidders 

5-6 

 

01 Definition and Terms 7 
02 Qualification of the Bidder 7-8 
03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 8 
04 Taxes 8 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder and Bid Security 8-9 
Form of Proposal 10-11 
Bid Bond 12 
Bidder Status Form 13 
Authorization to transact business 14 
Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 15 
Form of Contract 16-17 
Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond 18-21 
Notice to Proceed 22 

DIVISION 1 – Supplemental Provisions and Covenants 

01 Award of Contract 24 
02 Availability of Site 24 
03 Protection of Line and Grade Stakes 24 
04 Borrow and Waste Sites 24 
05 Contract Time 25 
06 Work Progress and Schedule 25 
07 Liquidated Damages 25 
08 Progress Payments and Vouchers 25-26 
09 Method of Measurement 26 
10 Basis of Payment 26 

175

Item 19.



3 
 

DIVISION 2 – Standard Specifications 

 
The City of Cedar Falls has adopted the 2022 Edition of the STATEWIDE URBAN 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS (SUDAS) as the 
City’s Standard Specification. 

 
This Standard Specification is amended by the “City of Cedar Falls” Supplemental 
Specifications to the Iowa SUDAS. 

 

Links to both documents can be found on the City’s website at: 
www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards 

 

DIVISION 3 – Special Provisions 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 26 

176

Item 19.



4 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, FORM OF 
CONTRACT, AND ESTIMATE OF COST FOR THE COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
TO ALL TAXPAYERS OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND OTHER PERSONS 
INTERESTED: 

 
Public notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

will conduct a Public Hearing on Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and Estimated 

Total Cost for the construction of the COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS 

PROJECT in said City at 7:00 p.m. on the 4th day of April 2022, said meeting to be held 

at the Community Center, 528 Main Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Said Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and Estimated Total Cost are now on 

file in the office of the City Clerk in the City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa, and may be inspected 

by any persons interested. 

Any person interested may appear at said meeting of the City Council for the 

purpose of making objections to said Plans, Specifications, Contract, or Estimated Total 

Cost of making said improvement. 

This notice given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

By:    
 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 

City Clerk 

177

Item 19.



5 
 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

Time and Place for Filing Sealed Proposals: Proposals will only be accepted electronically on 
the Quest CDN website before 2:00 p.m. on the 8th of April, 2022. 
 
Time and Place Sealed Proposals will be Opened and Considered: Sealed proposals will be 
publicly opened online at 2:00 p.m. on the 8th of April, 2022, at www.questcdn.com, for 
consideration by the City of Cedar Falls City Council at its meeting at 7:00 PM on the 18th of 
April, 2022, or at such later time and place as may be fixed. The City of Cedar Falls reserves 
the right to reject any and all proposals including without limitation, nonconforming, 
nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. 
 
Time for Commencement and Completion of Work: The work under the proposed contract shall 
commence within ten (10) calendar days after the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed and 
shall be performed regularly and diligently throughout the duration of the project. All work shall be 
completed within fifteen (15) working days. Working days will be accumulated concurrently from the 
date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed. A scanned copy of the Bid Bond must be 
included with the online bid submitted at www.questcdn.com. 

 
Bid Security: Each Form of Proposal shall be accompanied by a bid security as defined in the 
Instructions to Bidders- Division 1 Section 05. 
 
Performance and Payment Bonds: The successful Bidder shall furnish to the City a performance 
bond in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price, guaranteeing 
faithful performance of the contract and guaranteeing the completed project against defective 
workmanship and materials for a period of two (2) years from and after completion and 
acceptance by the City. The successful Bidder shall also provide a payment bond in an amount 
equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price guaranteeing payment of all persons 
supplying labor and materials, or both, in the execution of the work provided for in the contract. 

 
Contract Documents: Plans, specifications, and proposal forms have been approved by the City 
Council and are now on file for public examination in the office of the City Clerk. Electronic 
contract documents will become available Tuesday, February 22nd, 2022 at no cost by clicking 
on the “Bid Opportunities” Link at www.cedarfalls.com and choosing the College Hill Parking 
Lot Improvements Project from the list. Project information, Engineer’s cost opinion, and 
planholder information is also available at no cost at this website. Downloads require the user to 
register for a free membership at www.questcdn.com. If required, hard copies of the project 
documents may be obtained from the City Engineer’s office, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
50613 upon request. 
 
Contact Ben Claypool for document distribution or any questions via phone: 8156662. 

 
Preference for Iowa Products and Labor: By virtue of statutory authority, a preference will be given 
to products and provisions grown and coal produced within the State of Iowa. 

 
In accordance with Iowa statutes, a resident bidder shall be allowed a preference as against a 
nonresident bidder from a state or foreign country if that state or foreign country gives or requires 
any preference to bidders from that state or foreign country, including but not limited to any 
preference to bidders, the imposition of any type of labor force preference, or any other form of 

178

Item 19.



6 
 

preferential treatment to bidders or laborers from that state or foreign country. The preference 
allowed shall be equal to the preference given or required by the state or foreign country in which 
the nonresident bidder is a resident. In the instance of a resident labor force preference, a 
nonresident bidder shall apply the same resident labor force preference to a public improvement in 
this state as would be required in the construction of a public improvement by the state or foreign 
country in which the nonresident bidder is a resident. 

 

Failure to submit a fully completed Bidder Status Form with the bid may result in the bid being 
deemed nonresponsive and rejected. 

 
Sales Tax: Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 
Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment to be used in the performance of 
this project. Products utilized in the construction of this project shall be exempt from tax as provided 
by Code of Iowa Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 

 
Project Description: This project includes the restoration of approximately 45,126 square feet of 
ACC parking lots in the College Hill district. This work includes removal of existing ACC surface 
and placement of new HMA. Spot repairs of the curb and gutter and remarking of the pavement 
markings.  

  
Published upon order of the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
BY:    

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

179

Item 19.



7 
 

Instructions to Bidders 

 
The work comprising the COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
shall be constructed in accordance with the 2022 Edition of the SUDAS and as further 
modified by the City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications and the special provision 
included in the contract documents. The terms used in the contract revision of the 
documents are defined in said Standard Specifications. 

 
Before submitting your bid, please review the requirements of “Division One, General 
Provisions and Covenants”, in particular the sections regarding proposal requirements, 
bonding, contract execution, and insurance requirements. Please be certain that all 
documents have been completed properly; as failure to complete and sign all documents and 
to comply with the requirements listed below can cause your bid not to be read. 

 
01 Definition and Terms 

 

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1010 – 1.03: 
 

Code of Iowa: The latest edition of the Code of Iowa 
 

Engineer: The City Engineer of Cedar Falls, Iowa or an authorized representative. 

Owner: The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa acting through its City Council. 

Project: COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
 

Project No. PL-101-3264 
 

02 Qualification of the Bidder 
 

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.01: 
 

To demonstrate bidder’s qualifications to perform the work, within five days of the Owners 
request, bidder shall submit written evidence such as may be called for below: 

 
The address and description of the bidder’s place of business; The number of years 
engaged in the contracting business under the present firm name, and the name of the 
state where incorporated; A list of the property and equipment available to the bidder to 
evaluate if the bidder can complete the work in accordance with the bidding documents; A 
financial statement of the bidder showing that the bidder has the financial resources to 
meet all obligations incidental to the work; The bidder’s performance record giving the 
description, location, and telephone number of similar projects constructed in a satisfactory 
manner by the bidder; A list of projects presently under contract, the approximate contract 
amount and the percent of completion of each; A list of contracts which resulted in 
lawsuits; A list of contracts defaulted; A statement of the bidder indicating whether or not 

180

Item 19.



8 
 

the bidder has ever filed bankruptcy while performing work of a like nature or magnitude; A 
list of officers of the firm who, while in the employ of the firm or the employ of previous 
firms, were associated with contracts which resulted in lawsuits, contracts defaulted or filed 
for bankruptcy; The technical experience of personnel guaranteed to be employed in 
responsible charge of the work stating whether the personnel have or have not performed 
satisfactorily on other contracts of like nature and magnitude or comparable difficulty at 
similar rate of progress; Such additional information as will assist the Owner in determining 
whether the bidder is adequately prepared to fulfill the contract. Owner’s decision as to 
qualifications of the bidder will be final. 

 
The Owner hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract 
entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be 
afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be 
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color or national origin in consideration for an 
award. 

 
03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 

 

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.02: 
 

Plans, specifications, and proposal forms may be obtained from the office of the City 
Engineer. Plans, specifications, and proposal forms have been approved by the City 
Council and are now on file for public examination in the office of the City Clerk. 

 
04 Taxes 

 

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.08: 
 

Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 
Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment to be used in the 
performance of this project. Products utilized in the construction of this project will be 
exempt from tax as provided by Code of Iowa Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 

 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder and Bid Security 

 

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.12: 
 

The bid security must be in the minimum amount of 10% of the total bid amount including all 
add alternates (do not deduct the amount of deduct alternates). The bid security shall be in 
the form of a cashier's check or certified check drawn on a state-chartered or federally 
chartered bank, or a certified share draft drawn on a state-chartered or federally chartered 
credit union, or a bidder's bond with corporate surety satisfactory to the City. The bid bond 
must be submitted on the enclosed Bid Bond form, as no other bid bond forms are 
acceptable. All signatures on the bid bond must be original signatures in ink; facsimile (fax) 
of any signature on the bid bond is not acceptable. Bid security other than said bid bond 
shall be made payable to City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls”. 

181

Item 19.



9 
 

“Miscellaneous Bank checks”, as well as “Money Orders” and “Traveler’s Checks” issued by 
persons, firms or corporations licensed under Code of Iowa Chapter 533B are not acceptable 
bid security. 

 
The bid shall be submitted on the Form of Proposal included herewith or on a computer 
printed proposal. All entries on this proposal shall be filled in ink, typed or computer printed. 
The bidder shall not alter the quantity, unit price or the extension that has been provided 
for items that have been predetermined by the contracting authority. 

 
If the proposal is computer generated, the bidder shall submit a form titled as “Form of 
Proposal,” followed by: the project name, project number, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and 
the bidder's name. The form shall then include the item numbers, item descriptions, and 
units and their quantities. The bidder shall specify a unit price in figures of dollars and 
cents for all pay items, the extensions for the respective unit prices and quantities in figures 
in a column provided for the purpose, and the total amount of the proposal obtained by 
adding the amounts of the several items. The form shall then conclude with the bidder's 
name, that of its representative and the representative's signature. 

 
The computer generated proposal then is to be attached to the Form of Proposal included 
herewith, which has the following entries completed: bid security sum and form, the name 
of the bidder and its official address, and the bidder's representative's name, signature, 
and title. Also the total bid shall be completed with the entry of "see attached." 

 
The proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope separate from the bid security, 
bidders status form and non-collusion Affidavit. The envelope shall bear the return address 
of the bidder and shall be addressed as follows: 

 
To: City Clerk 

City of Cedar Falls 
City Hall 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 
Proposal for: COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

Project No. PL-101-3264 

182

Item 19.



10 
 

FORM OF PROPOSAL 
COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

NO. PL-101-3264 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
To the Mayor and City Council 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
The undersigned hereby certifies that  have personally 

and carefully examined the specifications, general conditions, and form of contract 

annexed hereto. Having made such examination, the undersigned hereby proposes to 

construct the improvements for the COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS 

PROJECT in accordance with the plans and specifications on file in the office of the City 

Clerk, the published Notice to Bidders and the Form of Contract, herewith, complying with 

all the laws of the State of Iowa, and the Rules, Regulations and Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, and to the satisfaction of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

including the guaranteeing of this Project for a period of two (2) years from the date of 

final acceptance thereof at the following prices, to-wit: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION BASE BID: $______________________ 
 
 

ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY 

1 HMA OVERLAY, (ST), BASE COURSE, 1.5”, PG58-28S TON 418.5 
2 HMA OVERLAY, (ST), SURFACE COURSE, 1.5”, PG58-28S TON 454.6 
3 FULL DEPTH PATCH, PCC, 7” DEPTH SY 22.3 
4 MILLING,3” SY 4995.7 
5 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT/WATERBORNE STA 26.8 
6 PAINTED SYMBOLS & LEGENDS EACH 5.0 
7 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1.0 
8 WATTLES LF 20.0 
9 MOBILIZATION LS 1.0 
10 PCC CURB FLUME LS 1.0 

183

Item 19.



11 
 

Bidders may not independently bid on selective items of work. In this project, all items 
constitute one indivisible work that will be let to one bidder. A unit price shall be submitted 
for each of the items (Items 1-10). The successful bidder will be determined by evaluating 
the Total Bid shown above. Failure to submit a bid on any item shall be just cause for 
disqualification of the entire proposal. Unit bids must be filled in ink, typed or computer 
generated, or the bid will be rejected. The Owner reserves the right to delete any part or all 
of any item. 

The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, including without limitation, 
nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. The Owner further 
reserves the right to reject the bid of any bidder whom it finds, after reasonable inquiry and 
evaluation, to be non-responsible. The Owner may also reject the bid of any bidder if the 
Owner believes that it would not be in the best interest of the project to make an award to 
that bidder. The Owner also reserves the right to waive all informalities not involving price, 
time or changes in the work. 

If written notice of approval of award is mailed, telegraphed or delivered to the undersigned 
within thirty (30) calendar days after the opening thereof, or any time thereafter before this 
bid is withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute and deliver an agreement in the 
prescribed form and furnish the required bond within ten (10) calendar days after the 
Contract is presented to the Contractor for signature, and start work within ten (10) 
calendar days after the date as set forth in the written Notice to Proceed. 

 

Bid  Security  in  the sum  of  in the form of 
  , is submitted herewith in accordance with the 
Instructions to Bidders. 

The bidder is prepared to submit a financial and experience statement upon request. 

The bidder has received the following Addendum or Addenda: 

Addendum No.    Date     
 
 

The bidder has filled in all blanks on this Proposal. 

Note: The Penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.A., Section 
1001. 

 
Name of bidder 

 

By 
 

Official Address Title 

184

Item 19.



12 
 

BID BOND 
 

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS, that we,    
  , as Principal, and    
as Surety are held and firmly bound unto the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as Obligee, hereinafter called "OBLIGEE," In the 
penal sum of    Dollars ($  ) lawful money of the United 
States, for the payment of which sum will and truly be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, and 
successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. Whereas the Principal has submitted the accompanying bid 
dated the  day of  , 20  , for     
  . 

NOW THEREFORE, 

(a) If said Bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate, 
 

(b) If said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the form specified and shall 
furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said contract, and for the payment of all persons performing labor 
or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in all other respects perform the agreement created by 
the acceptance of said Bid, 

 
Then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood and 
agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount of this 
obligation as herein stated. 

 
By virtue of statutory authority, the full amount of this bid bond shall be forfeited to the Obligee in liquidation of damages 
sustained in the event that the Principal fails to execute the contract and provide the bond as provided in the 
specifications or by law. 

 
The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in 
no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which the Obligee may accept such Bid or execute such 
contract; and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety, have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of them as 
are corporations, have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be signed by their proper 
officers this  day of  , A.D., 20 . 

 
 
 

   (Seal) 
Principal 

 

 

Witness 

 
By  (Title) 

 
   (Seal) 
Surety 

 

By   
 

Witness Attorney-in-fact 

185

Item 19.



13 
 

 
 

 

186

Item 19.



14 
 

 

187

Item 19.



15 
 

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER 
PROJECT NO. PL-101-3264 

 

STATE OF    
ss 

COUNTY OF    
 
 

  , being first duly sworn, deposes and says that: 
 

(1) We are   of  
(Owner, partner, officer, representative, or agent) 

 

  , the Bidder that has submitted the attached bid: 
 

(2) We are fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached bid and of all pertinent 
circumstances respecting such bid: 

 
(3) Such bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid: 

 
(4) Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, Owners, agents, representatives, employees 
or parties in interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or 
indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham bid in connection with the 
Contract for which the attached bid has been submitted or to refrain from bidding in connection with such 
Contract, or has in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or 
conference with any other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached bid or of any other 
Bidder, or, to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the bid price of any other Bidder, or to secure through 
any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, or any person interested in the proposed Contract; and 

 
(5) The price or prices quoted in the attached bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by a collusion, 
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representatives, 
Owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant. 

 
 
 
 

Signed 
 

Title 
 
 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
 

this  day of  , 20   
 
 

 
 

Title 
 

My Commission expires  . 

188

Item 19.



16 
 

FORM OF CONTRACT 
 

This Contract entered into in quadruplicate at Cedar Falls, Iowa, this  day of 
 

, 2022, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the 
 

 

Owner, and of  , hereinafter called the Contractor. 
 

 

WITNESSETH: 
 

The Contractor hereby agrees to furnish all labor, tools, materials and equipment 

and construct the public improvement consisting of: COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT 

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, Project No. PL-101-3264 all in the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, ordered to be constructed by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by 

Resolution duly passed on the 4th day of April 2022, and shown and described in the 

Plans and Specifications therefore now on file with the City Clerk of said City. 

Said improvement shall be constructed strictly in accordance with said Plans and 

Specifications. 

The following parts of the Plans and Specifications for said Project No. PL-101-3264 

attached hereto shall be made a part of this contract as fully as though set out herein 

verbatim: 

a. Resolution ordering construction of the improvement 
b. Plans 
c. Notice of Public Hearing on Plans and Specifications 
d. Notice to Bidders 
e. Bid 
f. Bid Bond 
g. Instructions to Bidders 
h. Supplemental Conditions 
i. General Conditions 
j. Project Specifications 
k. Form of Proposal 
l. Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond 
m. Form of Contract 

189

Item 19.



17 
 

n. Notice to Proceed 
o. Change Order 
p. Drawings prepared by Snyder & Associates, Inc. numbered A.1 through X.3 

and dated Month Day, Year 
q. Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 
r. Bidders Status Form 

 
 

On completion of the said improvement, the Owner agrees to pay to the Contractor 

therefore the prices set out in the Form of Proposal of the Contractor, said payment to be 

made in the manner stated in the published Notice to Bidders. 

In Witness whereof, this Contract has been executed in quadruplicate on the date first 
 

herein written. 
 
 

 
Contractor 

 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

By  
James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 

Attest:  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

Robert M. Green, Mayor

190

Item 19.



18 
 

Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond 
 

SURETY BOND NO.    
 
 

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 
That we,  ,  as  Principal  (hereinafter  the  “Contractor”  or  “Principal” and 
   as Surety are held and firmly bound unto CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, as Obligee (hereinafter referred to as “the Owner”), and to all persons who may be 

injured    by    any    breach    of    any    of    the    conditions    of    this    Bond    in    the    penal    sum   of 
 

($  ), lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be 
made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, legal representatives and assigns, jointly or severally, firmly by these presents. 

 
The conditions of the above obligations are such that whereas said Contractor entered into a contract with the 

Owner, bearing date the  day of  , 2022, hereinafter the “Contract”) wherein said Contractor 
undertakes and agrees to construct the following described improvements: 

 

COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

Project PL-101-3264 
 

and to faithfully perform all the terms and requirements of said Contract within the time therein specified, in a 

good and workmanlike manner, and in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 

It is expressly understood and agreed by the Contractor and Surety in this bond that the following provisions are a 
part of this Bond and are binding upon said Contractor and Surety, to-wit: 

 

1. PERFORMANCE: The Contractor shall well and faithfully observe, perform, fulfill, and abide by each 
and every covenant, condition, and part of said Contract and Contract Documents, by reference made a 

part hereof, for the above referenced improvements, and shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner 
from all outlay and expense incurred by the Owner by reason of the Contractor’s default or failure to 
perform as required. The Contractor shall also be responsible for the default or failure to perform as 
required under the Contract and Contract Documents by all its subcontractors, suppliers, agents, or 
employees furnishing materials or providing labor in the performance of the Contract. 

2. PAYMENT: The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agreed to pay all just claims submitted 

by persons, firms, subcontractors, and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the 
performance of the Contract on account of which this Bond is given, including but not limited to claims 
for all amounts due for labor, materials, lubricants, oil, gasoline, repairs on machinery, equipment, and 
tools, consumed or used by the Contractor or any subcontractor, wherein the same are not satisfied out of 

the portion of the contract price the Owner is required to retain until completion of the improvement, but 
the Contractor and Surety shall not be liable to said persons, firms, or corporations unless the claims of 
said claimants against said portion of the contract price shall have been established as provided by law. 
The Contractor and Surety hereby bind themselves to the obligations and conditions set forth in Chapter 
573 of the Iowa Code, which by this reference is made a part hereof as though fully set out herein. 

3. MAINTENANCE: The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agree, at their own expense: 

191

Item 19.



19 
 

A. To remedy any and all defects that may develop in or result from work to be performed under 
the Contract within the period of 2  year (s) from the date of acceptance of the work 
under the Contract, by reason of defects in workmanship or materials used in construction of 

said work; 

 

B. To keep all work in continuous good repair; and 

 
C. To pay the Owner’s reasonable costs of monitoring and inspection to assure that any defects 

are remedied, and to repay the Owner all outlay and expense incurred as a result of 
Contractor’s and Surety’s failure to remedy any defect as required by this section. 

 

Contractor’s and Surety’s agreement herein made extends to defects in workmanship or 

materials not discovered or known to the Owner at the time such work was accepted. 
 

4. GENERAL: Every Surety on this Bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 

notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 
 

A. To consent without notice to any extension of time to the Contractor in which to perform the 
Contract; 

 
B. To consent without notice to any change in the Contract or Contract Documents, which 

thereby increases the total contract price and the penal sum of this bond, provided that all 
such changes do not, in the aggregate, involve an increase of more than 20% of the total 
contract price, and that this bond shall then be released as to such excess increase; and 

 

C. To consent without notice that this Bond shall remain in full force and effect until the 
Contract is completed, whether completed within the specified contract period, within an 
extension thereof, or within a period of time after the contract period has elapsed and the 
liquidated damage penalty is being charged against the Contractor. 

 

The Contractor and every Surety on the bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 
notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 

 

D. That no provision of this Bond or of any other contract shall be valid that limits to less 
than five years after the acceptance of the work under the Contract the right to sue on this 
Bond. 

 

E. That as used herein, the phrase “all outlay and expense” is not to be limited in any way, but 
shall include the actual and reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Owner including 
interest, benefits, and overhead where applicable. Accordingly, “all outlay and expense” 
would include but not be limited to all contract or employee expense, all equipment usage or 

rental, materials, testing, outside experts, attorney’s fees (including overhead expenses of the 
Owner’s staff attorneys), and all costs and expenses of litigation as they are incurred by the 
Owner. It is intended the Contractor and Surety will defend and indemnify the Owner on all 
claims made against the Owner on account of Contractor’s failure to perform as required in 
the Contract and Contract Documents, that all agreements and promises set forth in the 
Contract and Contract Documents, in approved change orders, and in this Bond will be 

fulfilled, and that the Owner will be fully indemnified so that it will be put into the position it 
would have been in had the Contract been performed in the first instance as required. 

192

Item 19.



20 
 

In the event the Owner incurs any “outlay and expense” in defending itself against any claim 

as to which the Contractor or Surety should have provided the defense, or in the enforcement 

of the promises given by the Contractor in the Contract, Contract Documents, or approved 

change orders, or in the enforcement of the promises given by the Contractor and Surety in 

this Bond, the Contractor and Surety agree that they will make the Owner whole for all such 

outlay and expense, provided that the Surety’s obligation under this bond shall not exceed 

125% of the penal sum of this bond. 

 
In the event that any actions or proceedings are initiated regarding this Bond, the parties agree that the venue 
thereof shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk County, State of Iowa. If legal action is required by the 
Owner to enforce the provisions of this Bond or to collect the monetary obligation incurring to the benefit of the 
Owner, the Contractor and the Surety agree, jointly, and severally, to pay the Owner all outlay and expense 
incurred therefor by the Owner. All rights, powers, and remedies of the Owner hereunder shall be cumulative and 
not alternative and shall be in addition to all rights, powers, and remedies given to the Owner, by law. The Owner 

may proceed against surety for any amount guaranteed hereunder whether action is brought against the Contractor 
or whether Contractor is joined in any such action(s) or not. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if said Principal shall faithfully perform all the 
promises of the Principal, as set forth and provided in the Contract, in the Contract Documents, and in this Bond, 
then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
When a work, term, or phrase is used in this Bond, it shall be interpreted or construed first as defined in this Bond, 
the Contract, or the Contract Documents; second, if not defined in the Bond, Contract, or Contract Documents, it 
shall be interpreted or construed as defined in applicable provisions of the Iowa Code; third, if not defined in the 
Iowa Code, it shall be interpreted or construed according to its generally accepted meaning in the construction 

industry; and fourth, if it has no generally accepted meaning in the construction industry, it shall be interpreted or 
construed according to its common or customary usage. 

 

Failure to specify or particularize shall not exclude terms or provisions not mentioned and shall not limit liability 
hereunder. The Contract and Contract Documents are hereby made a part of this Bond. 

193

Item 19.



21 
 

Project No. PL-101-3264 
 

Witness our hands, in triplicate, this  day of  , 2022. 
 

Surety Countersigned By: PRINCIPAL: 
 

 

Signature of Agent Contractor 

 
 

By:    

Signature 
 

Printed Name of Agent Title 
 

 

Company Name 

SURETY: 

 

 
  

Company Address Surety Company 
 

By:    
 

City, State, Zip Code Signature Attorney-in-Fact Officer 

 
 

Company Telephone Number Printed Name of Attorney-in-Fact Officer 

 
 

Company Name 

 
 

 

FORM APPROVED BY: 

Company Address 

 
 

City, State, Zip Code 

 
Attorney for Owner Company Telephone Number 

 
 
 

NOTE: 
 

1. All signatures on this performance, payment, and maintenance bond must be original signatures in 

ink; copies, facsimile, or electronic signatures will not be accepted. 
2. This bond must be sealed with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 
3. The Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond must be valid on its face and sealed 

with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 
4. The name and signature of the Surety’s Attorney-in-Fact/Officer entered on this bond must be 

exactly as listed on the Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond. 

194

Item 19.



22 
 

NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 

TO:   DATE:   
 

      __________________________      Project: COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT               

                            IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
                         PL-101-3264 
      __________________________                   Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

 
You are hereby   notified to commence WORK in accordance with the Agreement dated 
  , 2022, within ten (10) calendar days of  , 2022 and you are 
to complete the WORK as follows: furnish all labor, material and equipment necessary for construction of the 
COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT. 

 
 
 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa  

(OWNER) 

 
By  

Title   

 

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 
 

Receipt of the above NOTICE TO PROCEED is hereby acknowledged by    
 

   this the  day of  , 2022. 
 

By   
 

Title   

195

Item 19.



23 
 

DIVISION 1 – Cedar Falls Supplemental Specifications 
 

Special Provisions are intended to amend or supplement the General Provisions and 
Covenants of the SUDAS Standard Specifications. All sections that are not amended or 
supplemented remain in full force and effect. 

 
01 Award of Contract 

 

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1030 – 1.03: 
 

The lowest responsive bidder shall be required to furnish a performance, payment and 
maintenance bond in the sum equal to one hundred (100%) percent of the total bid. The 
maintenance bond shall guarantee the maintenance of the improvements for a period of 
two (2) years from and after its completion and acceptance by the City of Cedar Falls. 

 
02 Protection of Line and Grade Stakes 

 

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.10: 
 

The Contractor shall notify the Engineer at least 48 hours prior to the need for survey 
stakes. The Contractor shall be responsible for preserving survey stakes and marks and if 
any survey stakes or marks are destroyed or disturbed by the Contractor, Contractor will be 
charged for the cost of replacing them. 

 
03 Borrow and Waste Sites 

 

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1070 – 2.13: 
 

It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to provide waste areas or disposal sites for excess 
material which is not desirable to be incorporated in the work involved on this project 
(excavation or broken concrete). No payment for overhaul will be allowed for material 
hauled to these sites. The Engineer shall review all proposed disposal sites and determine 
the acceptability of each. Overhaul will not be measured or paid for but will be considered 
incidental to pavement removal or roadway excavation on this project. 

 
04 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 

 

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.01: 
 

The Contractor's own organization shall perform work amounting to not less than thirty five 
(35%) percent of the total contract cost unless otherwise specified. Item designated as a 
specialty item may be performed by subcontract, and the cost of any such specialty item as 
performed by subcontract may be deducted from the total cost before computing the 
amount of work required by the Contractor's organization. 

196

Item 19.



24 
 

05 Contract Time 
 

Modify or add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.02: 
 

The work on the Contract shall commence ten calendar days after the date set forth in the 
written Notice to Proceed and shall be completed within fifteen (15) working days as set 
forth in the written Notice to Proceed. 

 
06 Work Progress and Schedule 

 

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.03: 

 
The progress of the work shall be such that at the expiration of one-fourth of the working 
days, one-eighth of the work shall be completed; at the expiration of one-half of the 
working days, three-eighths of the work shall be completed; at the expiration of three- 
fourths of the working days, the work shall be three-fourths completed, and the whole work 
shall be completed at the expiration of the working days. 

 
Work shall not begin before 7:00 a.m. and shall stop at sunset. 

 
07 Liquidated Damages 

 

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.12: 
 

Liquidated damages in the amount of one thousand ($1000.00) dollars per working day 
will be assessed for each working day that the work remains uncompleted after the 
expiration of the contract time. 

 
08 Progress Payments and Vouchers 

 

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1090 – 1.01: 
 

Pay estimates will be submitted to the City Council for approval on the First and Third 
Mondays of each month. 

 
Payment to the Contractor will be made in cash from such cash funds of said City as may 
be legally used for said purposes, including the proceeds of the Local Option Tax and 
General Obligation Bonds. Any other combination of funds may be used at the discretion of 
the City Council. 

 
See Division 2 – Special Provisions Section 06- Contract time for liquidated damages for 
Intermediate working days. 

 
Before final payment is made, the Contractor shall furnish vouchers showing that all 
subcontractors and all persons furnishing labor and materials have been fully paid for such 
materials and labor and that the City may retain the last month's payment for a period of 

197

Item 19.



25 
 

ninety (90) calendar days following such completion and approval, unless satisfied that 
material and laborers have been paid in full. 

 
09 METHOD OF MEASUREMENT 

 

The Engineer will measure the items of work that have been acceptably constructed as 
specified in the contract documents for the COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT in accordance with the 2022 Edition of the SUDAS and as 
further modified by the City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications. 

 
10 BASIS OF PAYMENT 

 

Payment for the items listed in the Method of Measurement shall be determined by 
multiplying the item quantity (as determined in the Method of Measurement) by the unit 
price as bid on the proposal form in accordance with the 2022 edition of the SUDAS as 
amended by the City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications to the 2022 edition of the 
SUDAS. 

198

Item 19.



26 
 

DIVISION 3 – Special Provisions 
 
 

All work shall be constructed as specified in the Contract documents for the College Hill 
Parking Lot Improvements Project in accordance with the 2022 Edition of the SUDAS as 
amended by the City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications to the Iowa SUDAS, 
except as amended or supplemented as follows: 

 
 
 

Item No. 10 – PCC Curb Flume 
Bid item includes all items and work necessary to complete installation of curb  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

199

Item 19.



ITEM# DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 HMA OVERLAY, (ST), BASE COURSE, 1.5", PG58-28S TON 418.5 120.00$        50,220.00$    

2 HMA OVERLAY, (ST), SURFACE COURSE, 1.5", PG58-28S TON 454.6 120.00$        54,552.00$    

3 FULL DEPTH PATCH, PCC, 7" DEPTH SY 22.3 150.00$        3,345.00$       

4 MILLING,3" SY 4995.7 6.00$            29,974.20$    

5 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT/WATERBORNE STA 26.8 45.00$          1,206.00$       

6 PAINTED SYMBOLS & LEGENDS EACH 5.0 75.00$          375.00$          

7 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1.0 1,000.00$    1,000.00$       

8 WATTLES LF 20.0 4.00$            80.00$            

9 MOBILIZATION LS 1.0 7,000.00$    7,000.00$       

10 PCC CURB FLUME LS 1 2,500.00$    2,500.00$       

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE 

2022 COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT

PL-101-3264

TOTAL 

ESTIMATE
150,252.20$  

200

Item 19.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: March 14, 2022  

 SUBJECT: Zoning Code Text Amendment – Allowing Daycare in M1 District (TA22-002) 
 

 
Background 
 
The City recently received an inquiry about expansion of an existing daycare center located on Nordic 

Drive in the M-1, Light Industrial District. After reviewing the zoning code to determine the standards and 

requirements for the proposed expansion, staff noticed that daycare uses are not an allowed use in the 

M1 Zoning District. The first item on the list of permitted uses in the M-1 District is “any use permitted in 

the C-3 District, except that no occupancy permit shall be issued for any dwelling, school, hospital, clinic, 

or other institution for human care, except where incidental to a permitted principal use. Apparently, 

when the daycare center was built in 1999 staff did not notice that “institutions for human care” were 

excluded from the M-1 Zoning District. Since the use was not allowed when it was established, it has no 

rights to continue or to expand. The owner’s representative has submitted a letter (attached) requesting 

consideration of a zoning code text amendment to allow daycare centers in the M-1 Light Industrial 

District.    

 
Analysis 
 
In the City’s 2019-2023 Consolidated Plan, which characterizes the current needs in the community for 

housing, safe and livable neighborhoods, public services, and opportunities for employment, daycare 

services were listed as a critical need in the community. Convenient access to quality daycare is 

essential to support the workforce in Cedar Falls and to attract new employers. The City’s industrial and 

technology parks are some of the largest employment centers in the community. Locating daycare 

centers in these areas helps to reduce travel times and provides more flexibility in work schedules.  

 

Zoning ordinances, particularly older zoning ordinances, often focus on the separation of land uses; in 

this case separating industrial uses from certain other uses. However, staff finds there are a number of 

reasons that allowing daycare uses in the light industrial zone is unlikely to be a concern.  

 The M-1 Zone already allows a wide variety of uses, including office, retail, fitness centers, 

restaurants and other uses where people may often bring their children.  

 The M-1 Zone is a light industrial zone intended for clean industry. The ordinance states that “no 

use shall be permitted or maintained which by reason of its nature or manner of operation is or 

may become hazardous, noxious or offensive owing to the emission of odor, dust, smoke, 

201

Item 20.



 
 

cinders, gas, fumes, noise, vibrations, refuse matter or water-carried waste.” These standards will 

help prevent nuisances and unhealthy conditions for daycare centers.   

 Market factors will discourage daycare uses from locating where clients are unlikely to bring their 

children.    

 Daycare uses are already allowed if accessory to an existing business in the M1 District. In other 

words, any industrial use could have an in-house daycare.  

 A daycare has been operating on this particular site in the M-1 District since 1999 without any 

issues of concern.  

 

Discussion of Solutions 

 

In order to allow daycare centers in the M-1 Zone, the zoning ordinance must be amended. Reasonable 

standards must be established for a daycare center within the context of the M-1 Zone. Staff 

recommends that the following changes be considered: 

 

 Amend paragraph (1)a. within Section 26-173, M-1 Light Industrial District, as follows (underlined text 

is new language. Other language remains the same):  

 

(1) Principal permitted uses. Permitted principal uses are as follows:  

a. Any use permitted in the C-3 district, except that no occupancy permit shall be issued for 

any dwelling, school, hospital, clinic or other institution for human care, except: 

i. Where said use is incidental to a permitted principal use; and 

ii. Daycare uses, with the following standards: Outdoor play areas shall not be 

located in the required front yard and must be set back a minimum of 10 feet from 

side and rear lot lines and fenced and screened from abutting properties with trees 

or shrubbery to achieve a continuous visual screen that at maturity reaches a 

minimum 6 feet in height.  

 

 Add a row for daycare uses to the dimensional standards table in paragraph (5) of Section 26-173, as 

follows:  

 

Use Front Yard 

depth 

Side yard 

width 

Rear yard 

depth 

 

Daycare 

 

25 feet 

 

10 feet 

 

25 feet 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

At the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on March 9, 2022, the Commission voted unanimously 

to recommend approval of amendments to allow daycare uses in the M-1 Light Industrial Zone as 

outlined in the staff report above.  

 

Staff recommends that City Council set a public hearing for the April 4 Council meeting to consider the 

aforementioned ordinance amendments.  

 

 

202

Item 20.



 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
Discussion 
2/23/2022 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a zoning text amendment for 
daycare uses in the M-1, Light Industrial District. Chair Leeper introduced the item and 
Ms. Howard provided background information. She explained that the City received an 
inquiry regarding an expansion of a daycare that is currently in the M-1 district. After 
investigation it was found that the building was built in 1999 and the daycare was 
established sometime thereafter. However, daycare uses are not an allowed use in that 
district and the daycare has asked if there is a way to allow them to expand and 
continue to operate in that location. Upon analysis, there is a critical need for daycare 
services in the community. The City’s Industrial and Technology Parks are large centers 
of employment and there is a need for daycare services in locations convenient to 
employment centers.  
 

 Ms. Howard discussed a number of reasons that allowing daycare uses may not be 
problematic.  She noted that the zone is intended for light industrial uses, not heavy 
industrial, so does not allow uses that create lots of dust, odors, noise, and other 
nuisances that might be found in a heavy industrial area. In addition to light industrial, 
the zone allows a variety of general commercial uses, such as restaurants and offices 
where people are likely to bring their children. She also noted that daycare uses are 
currently allowed if they are an accessory to an existing business, i.e. an in-house 
daycare. The specific daycare being discussed serves as a case study and she noted 
that there have been no issues of concern over the 20 years it has been operating.  

 
 Ms. Howard discussed some suggested standards to consider with regard to changing 

the ordinance. Staff recommends discussion of the petition to allow daycare uses in the 
M-1 District and setting a public hearing date for March 9 for formal consideration and 
recommendation to Council. 

 
 Ms. Lynch stated that there is a need for daycare in the Cedar Valley and would like 

there to be more options for families in the area. Ms. Moser agreed. 
 
 Ms. Lynch made a motion to set a public hearing. Ms. Moser seconded the motion. The 

motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Leeper, Lynch, Moser 
and Saul), and 0 nays. 
 

 
Public Hearing 

3/9/2022    Ms. Howard introduced the item to consider amendments to the zoning code to allow 
daycare uses in the M-1 Light Industrial Zone. Mr. Leeper opened the public hearing. No 
comments were received at the public hearing. Ms. Lynch made a motion to approve the 
amendments. Ms. Saul seconded the motion. Ms. Lynch noted the need in the 
community for daycare services and stated her support for expanding opportunities. Ms. 
Moser agreed that daycare services are needed close to employment centers. As there 
was no more discussion, Mr. Leeper asked for a roll call vote. On a unanimous vote, the 
Commission recommended approval of the zoning code amendments to allow daycare 
uses in the M-1 Light Industrial Zone.  

 
 

203

Item 20.



327 E. 4th Street, Suite 204                    Waterloo, Iowa 50703                     (319) 233-1163                      www.alignplc.com

February 8, 2022

Karen Howard
Planning & Community Services Manager
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa  50613

Re: Community United Child Care Center
Nordic Drive, Cedar Falls

Dear Karen,

Based on our recent conversations we would like to request that the city consider amending the 
current M-1 zoning district to allow for child care facilities. As we have discussed the existing 
Community United Care Center (CUCCC) on Nordic Drive has been a child care facility in the 
M-1 District for many decades as the building was used by Head Start providing child care at 
this location prior to CUCCC using it for their current child care facility. CUCCC would like to 
expand their building and services at this location to help address the shortage child care in our 
area.

CUCCC has just received grant funding from the state to expand their operations at this 
location. The grant does require some significant progress be made by June 30, 2022 so we 
would like to move forward as quickly as possible with an amendment if it is going to happen so 
that CUCCC can take advantage of the state grants.

Amending the M-1 district to allow child care facilities will be a benefit to all the typical uses that 
occur in this district. Having child care available in this zoning is a convenience for workers and 
saves time and travel by having child care near by peoples place of work. The child care 
function in this zoning will not be a detriment to any of the other allowed uses in the M-1 zoning. 
Child care providers being located in the M-1 zoning is a distinct amenity to all in the area by 
providing a much needed service.

This would also give large employers in the area the ability to provide separate on site child care 
facilities that could also benefit their employee recruitment and retention.

We feel this a beneficial amendment to the M-1 zoning district and request that you move 
forward with the processes necessary to amend the M-1 zoning district to allow child care as an 
approved use.

Sincerely,
Align Architecture & Planning, PLC

Jacob Bauer, AIA

204

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE, Principal Engineer 
 
 DATE: March 11, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Updates to City Code Section 7-196  

  Discharge of Stormwater or Groundwater into City Sanitary Sewer      
System 

   
The current City Code exempts pre-1969 buildings from the requirement to remove all 
stormwater and groundwater connections to the sanitary sewer. As explained at the 
March 7, 2022 Committee of the Whole Meeting, multiple overflows at the Park Drive 
Lift Station during wet weather has made it necessary to investigate all private 
connections to the sanitary sewer in the North Cedar Heights area. This will require 
changing the current City Code. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department is proposing changes to City 
Code Section 7-196, Discharge of Stormwater or Groundwater into City Sanitary Sewer 
System, to no longer exempt pre-1969 buildings from being required to disconnect 
stormwater and groundwater connections. Please see the attached redline changes for 
City Code Section 7-196, Discharge of Stormwater or Groundwater into City Sanitary 
Sewer System.  
 
This change to City Code will allow the Engineering Division to address the Infiltration 
and Inflow problem in the Park Drive Lift Station Sewershed as part of the upcoming 5-
year road reconstruction project in the North Cedar Heights area. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to ask. 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer  
 

205

Item 21.



 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 7-196, DISCHARGE OF STORMWATER 
OR GROUNDWATER INTO CITY SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM, OF DIVISION 2, 
PROHIBITION ON DISCHARGE OF STORMWATER AND GROUNDWATER TO 
CITY SANITARY SEWER, IN ARTICLE V, PLUMBING REGULATIONS, OF 
CHAPTER 7, BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS, OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY ELIMINATING THE 
EXCEPTION TO PROHIBITION OF DISCHARGE OF STORMWATER INTO THE 
SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM FOR DWELLINGS, BUILDINGS OR OTHER 
STRUCTURES FOR WHICH BUILDING PERMITS WERE ISSUED ON FEBRUARY 
10, 1969, OR EARLIER. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                 Section 7-196, Discharge of Stormwater or Groundwater into City Sanitary Sewer 
System, of Division 2, Prohibition on Discharge of Stormwater and Groundwater to City Sanitary 
Sewer, of Article V, Plumbing Regulations, of Chapter 7, Buildings and Building Regulations, of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a 
new Section 7-196, Discharge of Stormwater or Groundwater into City Sanitary Sewer System 
is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 7-196. - Discharge of stormwater or groundwater into city sanitary sewer system 

The discharge of water from any roof, surface, ground, sump pump, footing tile or from 
any other natural precipitation source into the city sanitary sewer collection system has the 
potential to cause damage to property and to overload the city wastewater collection, 
conveyance and treatment system. Such discharge may result in the backup of sewage into 
living quarters of residential dwellings, or into other buildings or structures in the city, thereby 
creating a potential public health hazard, and potentially exceeding the capacity of the city 
wastewater collection, conveyance and treatment system. Therefore, the city finds that it is 
essential to the maintenance of public health, safety, comfort, and welfare, to the minimization 
of damage to property, and to the maintenance of the functioning and capacity of the city 
wastewater collection, conveyance and treatment system, that the provisions of this division 
be strictly enforced. Since Ordinance No. 1275 was adopted on February 10, 1969, this Code 
has prohibited the discharge of stormwater from any dwelling, building or other structure into 
the city's sanitary sewer system. The provisions of this division shall apply to every dwelling, 
building or other structure in the city, for the construction of which a city building permit was 
issued after February 10, 1969. 

 

INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

206

Item 21.



PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

                                                                                               

                                                                               ___________________________ 

                                                                                         Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

207

Item 21.



ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 7-196, DISCHARGE OF STORMWATER OR 

GROUNDWATER INTO CITY SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM, OF DIVISION 2, PROHIBITION 

ON DISCHARGE OF STORMWATER AND GROUNDWATER TO CITY SANITARY SEWER, 

IN ARTICLE V, PLUMBING REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 7, BUILDINGS AND BUILDING 

REGULATIONS, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

BY ELIMINATING THE EXCEPTION TO PROHIBITION OF DISCHARGE OF STORMWATER 

INTO THE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM FOR DWELLINGS, BUILDINGS OR OTHER 

STRUCTURES FOR WHICH BUILDING PERMITS WERE ISSUED ON FEBRUARY 10, 1969, 

OR EARLIER. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

Section 7-196, Discharge of Stormwater or Groundwater into City Sanitary Sewer System, of 

Division 2, Prohibition on Discharge of Stormwater and Groundwater to City Sanitary Sewer, of Article 

V, Plumbing Regulations, of Chapter 7, Buildings and Building Regulations, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 7-

196, Discharge of Stormwater or Groundwater into City Sanitary Sewer System is enacted in lieu 

thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 7-196. - Discharge of stormwater or groundwater into city sanitary sewer system 

The discharge of water from any roof, surface, ground, sump pump, footing tile or from any 

other natural precipitation source into the city sanitary sewer collection system has the potential to 

cause damage to property and to overload the city wastewater collection, conveyance and 

treatment system. Such discharge may result in the backup of sewage into living quarters of 

residential dwellings, or into other buildings or structures in the city, thereby creating a potential 

public health hazard, and potentially exceeding the capacity of the city wastewater collection, 

conveyance and treatment system. Therefore, the city finds that it is essential to the maintenance of 

public health, safety, comfort, and welfare, to the minimization of damage to property, and to the 

maintenance of the functioning and capacity of the city wastewater collection, conveyance and 

treatment system, that the provisions of this division be strictly enforced.  

INTRODUCED:    March 21, 2022   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:     

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:     

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:     

ADOPTED:       

 

             
ATTEST:      Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

         
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

208

Item 21.



209

Item 22.



210

Item 22.



211

Item 22.



212

Item 22.



213

Item 22.



214

Item 22.



215

Item 22.



216

Item 22.



217

Item 22.



218

Item 22.



219

Item 22.



220

Item 22.



221

Item 22.



222

Item 22.



223

Item 22.



224

Item 22.



225

Item 22.



226

Item 22.



227

Item 22.



228

Item 22.



229

Item 22.



230

Item 22.



231

Item 22.



232

Item 22.



233

Item 22.



234

Item 22.



235

Item 22.



236

Item 22.



237

Item 22.



238

Item 22.



239

Item 22.



240

Item 22.



241

Item 22.



242

Item 22.



243

Item 22.



244

Item 22.



245

Item 22.



246

Item 22.



247

Item 22.



248

Item 22.



249

Item 22.



250

Item 22.



251

Item 22.



252

Item 22.



253

Item 22.



254

Item 22.



255

Item 22.



256

Item 22.



257

Item 22.



258

Item 22.



259

Item 22.



260

Item 22.



261

Item 22.



262

Item 22.



263

Item 22.



264

Item 22.



265

Item 22.



266

Item 22.



267

Item 22.



268

Item 22.



269

Item 22.



270

Item 22.



271

Item 22.



272

Item 22.



273

Item 22.



274

Item 22.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular Meeting of March 7, 2022
	220307MINUTES

	Item 2.	Proclamation-March for Meals Day
	2022-03-22_March_for_Meals_Day

	Item 3.	Proclamation-Honey Bee Day
	2022-03-30_HoneyBeeDay

	Item 4.	3006-Increase DT parking ratio
	1 - Memo.CC. second reading changes to parking req CD-DT.3.21.22
	3006-Pkng .75 per bed CD-DT

	Item 5.	Boards and Commission-Appointment
	2022-02-15_CSC_Ford_Reappoint

	Item 6.	Committee of the Whole Minutes - 2/28/22
	02-28-22 Committee of the Whole Minutes-Final

	Item 7.	Committee of the Whole Minutes - 03/07/22
	03-07-22 Committee of the Whole Minutes-Final

	Item 8.	Work Session Minutes - 03/07/22
	03-07-22 Work Session Minutes

	Item 9.	Acting Public Safety Director
	Acting PS Director Memo 3-1-2022

	Item 10.	Liquor Beer 3-21-22
	Liquor Beer 3-21-22

	Item 11.	Acting Police Chief
	2022-03-11_Acting Police Chief  Edits

	Item 12.	Backup-Disaster Recovery-IP Pathways
	Backup as a Service
	20220315 - City of Cedar Falls - MSA final

	Item 13.	HOME Investment Partnership Agreement-Waterloo
	1. Council memo HOME Agreement 3-21-22
	HOME CONSORTIUM AGR 2022-2025-final

	Item 14.	Private Ash Tree Removal Program
	Council Memo
	Owens
	Twin Cities
	Wapsi

	Item 15.	Final Acceptance - W. 12th Street Reconstruction Project
	1. Final Out - W. 12th Street Reconstruction
	2. Retainage Release - Signed
	3. Peformance, Payment and Maintenance Bond
	4. Lien Waivers

	Item 16.	2022 Street Construction Contract-Peterson
	1. 2022 Street Construction Memo
	2. Form of Contract
	3. Payment, Performance, and Maintenance Bond
	4. Insurance
	5. Form of Proposal

	Item 17.	Low Bid-2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project
	1. Memo Low Bid - CDBG Sanitary Sewer
	2. Bid Tabulation

	Item 18.	ROW-Olive Street Box Culvert Project
	1. ROW Memo - Olive Box (1)
	2. ROW Figure
	3. ROW-2016 Olive - Fee Title

	Item 19.	Set PH-College Hill Parking Lot Improvements Project
	1. Memo PSE - College Hill Parking Lot Improvements Project
	2. Plans, Specifications, and Estimate

	Item 20.	Set PH-Zoning-Permitted Uses in M-1
	1 - Memo.text amendment.daycare in M1.setph
	2. M-1 Zoning amd Request

	Item 21.	Ord-Discharge into sanitary sewer
	1. Memo - Update to City Code Sec. 7-196
	2-Ord-Stormwater Redline
	3-Ord-Stormwater Discharge Amendment

	Item 22.	Bills
	1 Daily Invoices 032122
	2 Council Invoices 032122

	Bottom

